
REVISED AGENDA 
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
May 23, 2011 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
CALL TO ORDER  5:00 P.M., Board Room, District Office 
    15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California 
 
ROLL CALL   Directors Reinhart, Matheis, Swan, Withers and President LaMar 
 

NOTICE 
 
If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file your name with 
the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table.  Remarks are limited to five minutes per speaker on 
each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one motion, without discussion, unless a request 
is made for specific items to be removed from the Calendar for separate action. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD  
 
1. A.  Written: 
 
 B.   Oral:  Mrs. Joan Irvine Smith relative to the Dyer Road Wellfield.  
 
2. ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 

Recommendation:  Determine that the need to discuss and/or take immediate action on item(s) 
introduced come to the attention of the District subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 

 
PRESENTATION 
 
3. SCIENCE FAIR WINNERS 
 
 Each year, IRWD presents awards to local students for their water-related 

projects entered in the Irvine Unified School District Science Fair. 
 
 
WORKSHOP                                                      

 
4. FISCAL YEAR 2011/12 DRAFT CAPITAL BUDGET 
 
 This item is presented for information purposes prior to consideration of final  
 adoption at the June 13, 2011 board meeting. 



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 23, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR       Next Resolution No. 2011-19                                  Items 6-14 
 
5. MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 
 

Recommendation:  That the minutes of the May 9, 2011 Regular Board Meeting 
be approved as presented. 

 
6. RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT 

MEETINGS AND EVENTS 
 
 Recommendation:  Ratify/approve the meetings and events for Steven LaMar,  
 Doug Reinhart, and  Peer Swan as delineated above. 
 
7. APRIL 2011 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment  
 Summary Report and the Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary for April 2011;  
 approve the April 2011 Summary of Wire Transfers and ACH payments in the  
 total amount of $11,380,142.82; and approve the April 2011 Warrants Nos.  
 319297 through 319955, workers’ compensation distributions and voided  
 checks  in the total amount of $10,067,674.50. 
 
8. DISTRICT STRATEGIC MEASURES DASHBOARDS 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board receive and file the Strategic Measures  

Dashboards and Information items. 
  

9. UPCOMING PROJECTS STATUS REPORT 
 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
                                              

10. 2011 STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE  
 

 Recommendation: That the Board take a Watch position on AB 403 (Campos),  
 and take a Support position on AB 964 (Huffman), an Oppose unless amended  
 position on SB 46 (Correa), and an Oppose position on the April 15, 2011  
 amendments to AB 134 (Dickenson), AB 506 (Wiecowski), and SB 474 (Evans). 

 
11. PROJECT GREENFILL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a  
 Cooperative Agreement with the County of Orange for mutually agreed-upon  
 locations for project Greenfill, a plan to install water bottle filling stations  
 throughout IRWD’s service area. 
 



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 23, 2011 
Page 3 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued                 Next Resolution No. 2011-19                    Items 6-14 
 
12. RATIFICATION OF PROPOSED BY-LAWS FOR THE ORANGE  
 COUNTY SPECIAL DISTRICT SELECTION COMMITTEE 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve the draft by-laws for the Orange  
 County Special District Selection Committee. 
 
13. MICHELSON WATER RECYCLING PLANT BIOSOLID AND ENERGY  
 RECOVERY FACILITIES - VARIANCE NO. 6 

 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve Variance No. 6 to the Black &  
 Veatch Engineering Services Agreement in the amount of $87,500 to complete  
 the biogas utilization validation study for the MWRP Biosolids and Energy  
 Recovery Facilities, project 20847. 
 
14. VARIANCE REQUEST FOR STRAND RANCH RECOVERY FACILITIES  
 DESIGN  
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve Variance No. 4 to the Professional  
 Services Agreement with Kennedy Jenks/Consultants in the amount of $75,246  
 for additional meetings, enhanced outside agency coordination and additional  
 design services. 
 
 
ACTION CALENDAR           
 
15. EPA WATERSENSE PROGRAM: WATER SOFTENERS 

 
 Recommendation:  That the Board oppose the Environmental Protection  
 Agency’s (EPA) development of draft efficiency and performance specifications  
 for residential cation exchange water softeners, and that IRWD join coalition  
 efforts  against the development of WaterSense standards for self-regenerating  
 water softeners.  
 
16. PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE CROSS-CONNECTION AND BACKFLOW 

PREVENTION SERVICES TO THE CITY OF SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve the terms and conditions for IRWD 
 to provide cross-connection and backflow prevention services to the City of  
 San Juan Capistrano and to authorize the General Manager to execute a  
 Consultant Services Agreement with the City of San Juan Capistrano, subject 
 to legal counsel review. 
 



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 23, 2011 
Page 4 
 
 
ACTION CALENDAR - Continued      
 
17. ORANGE PARK ACRES TRANSMISSION PIPELINE PROJECT 
 CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 9  
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve Contract Change Order No. 9 with  
 Leatherwood Construction, Inc. in the amount of $264,882 for the Orange Park  
 Acres Transmission Pipeline Project, project 11408. 
 
18. WELLS 21 AND 22 DESALTER PROJECT PIPELINES AND WELLHEAD 

FACILITIES EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION, VARIANCE, AND 
CONSULTANT SELECTIONS 

 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve an Expenditure Authorization in  
 the amount of $388,500; authorize the General Manager to execute Variance  
 No. 3 in the amount of $183,500 with RBF Consulting for design and  
 engineering construction support services; authorize the General Manager to  
 execute a Professional Services Agreement in the amount of $70,274 with 
 Ninyo and Moore for construction phase geotechnical services; and authorize  
 the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement in the  
 amount of $109,885 with Borchard Surveying for construction phase surveying  
 services for the Wells 21 and 22 Desalter Project Pipelines and Wellhead  
 Facilities, project 10286. 
 
19. WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT FOR HERITAGE FIELDS (PLANNING  
 AREAS 30 AND 51) AND VERIFICATION OF SUFFICIENT WATER  
 SUPPLIES FOR TENTATIVE TRACT NOS. 17283, 17364, 17366, 17368  
 AND 17202 (PLANNING AREA 51) 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board approve the water supply assessment for  
 Planning Areas 30 and 51 and verification of sufficient water supplies for  
 Tentative Tract Nos. 17283, 17364, 17366, 17368 and 17202 in Planning Area  
 51. 
 
20. RECONSIDERATION OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MUNICIPAL  
 WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY (MWDOC) AND ITS  
 MEMBER AGENCIES ON BUDGET, ACTIVITIES, CHARGES AND  
 OTHER SERVICES AS APPROVED BY THE IRWD BOARD ON  
 JANUARY 24, 2011 
 
 Recommendation: Background: in light of the recent actions at MWDOC,  
 Director Swan has requested the Board discuss reconsideration of the subject  
 agreement. 



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 23, 2011 
Page 5 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask questions 
for clarification, make brief announcements, make brief reports on his/her own activities.  The Board or a 
Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to 
report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a 
future agenda.  Such matters may be brought up under the General Manager’s Report or Directors’ 
Comments. 
 
21. A.  General Manager’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 B.  Directors’ Comments 
 
 1) 
 
 
 
 2) 
 
  
 
  3) 
 
 
 
  4) 
 
 
 
  5) 
 
 
 C.  CLOSED SESSION:  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO 

(Government Code Section 54957.6) 
 Agency designated representative:  Steven LaMar 
 Unrepresented employee:  Paul D. Jones II 

 
 
D.  Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 23, 2011 
Page 6 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS - Continued 

 
 

 *     *      *     *     *     *       *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *    *   *    *     *     *     *     *   *    *     *     *     *     *    *   *             
Availability of agenda materials: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a 
majority of the members of the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject to discussion or 
consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the District’s office, 15600 Sand 
Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”).  If such writings are distributed to members of the Board less than 72 hours 
prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the District Office at the same time as they are distributed 
to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available at the 
entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the District Office.  
 
The Irvine Ranch Water District Board Room is wheelchair accessible.  If you require any special disability-related 
accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949) 453-5300 during 
business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  This agenda can be obtained in alternative format 
upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 







Irvine Ranch Water District

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Capital Budget

Board of Directors WorkshopBoard of Directors Workshop

May 23, 2011

Irvine Ranch Water District

Capital Budget Presentation

• Background and projected expenditures for 
i fi l FY2010/11previous fiscal year: FY2010/11

• FY2011/12 Capital Budget Summary

• Flagged Projects

• Capital Budget Schedule



Irvine Ranch Water District

Background and Summary

• FY 2010/11

– Projected capital expenditures: $142.3 M

– Actual expenditures are projected: $104.0 M

• MWRP Phase II Expansion

• Wells 21 and 22 Desalter

• OPA Pipeline Replacementp p

• Cienega Filtration

– The spending curves for these projects account for the majority of 
the difference between actual and projected expenditures

• FY 2011/12 projected expenditures: $114.1 M

Irvine Ranch Water District

Top 10 Project Group Summaries

1. MWRP Phase 2 Expansion $31.1

2. OCSD CORF and Solids Handling 13.0g

3. Wells 21 and 22 10.0

4. Water Banking 9.5

5. Baker Water Treatment Plant 8.1

6. East Orange Regional Trans. Main 5.4

7. MWRP Biosolids Handling 4.9g

8. Alton Parkway Pipelines 2.7

9. Well 78 2.1

10. Tustin Legacy Well 1 1.9

Subtotal $88.7



Irvine Ranch Water District

Capital Budget Funding Sources

Domestic 
Water

Sewer / 
ReclaimedWater Reclaimed

Connect. Fees / Taxes (Capital Funds) $42.0 $49.3

User Rates

Enhancement Fund $0.7 $2.6

Replacement Fund $9 0 $10 5Replacement Fund $9.0 $10.5

Total Projected Expenditures $51.6 $62.4

Irvine Ranch Water District

Water Funding Sources
FY2010/11 vs.  FY2011/12

$71.3 M $51.6 M

$30.0

$40.0

$50.0

$60.0

Wells 21/22, E. Orange Trans. Main, Baker WTP

RMS Mixing System 
Upgrades

$0.0

$10.0

$20.0

Con. Fees / Taxes (Capital Fund) Enhancement Fund Replacement Fund

Newport Beach
WM Replacement



Irvine Ranch Water District

Sewer Funding Sources
FY2010/11 vs. FY2011/12

$71.1 M $62.4 M

$30.0

$40.0

$50.0

$60.0

MWRP Phase 2 Exp, MWRP Biosolids

MWRP Flood Protection

$0.0

$10.0

$20.0

Con. Fees / Taxes (Capital Fund) Enhancement Fund Replacement Fund

CORF

Irvine Ranch Water District

$15 0

Water Expenditures by Source of Funds
($51.6 M)

$5.0

$10.0

$15.0

$
M Enhancement Fund ($0.7M)

Replacement Fund ($9.0M)

Wells 21/22, Baker WTP

$0.0



Irvine Ranch Water District

Sewer Expenditures by Source of Funds 
($62.4 M)

MWRP Expansion Phase II,

$10.0

$15.0

$20.0

$
M

Enhancement Fund ($2.6M) 

Replacement Fund ($10.5M)

MWRP Expansion Phase II, 
CORF 

$0.0

$5.0

Irvine Ranch Water District

Current Flagged Projects

Project 10286 – Wells 21/22 Wellhead, Pipeline, Treatment

Project 10835 NTS: South San Joaquin MarshProject 10835 – NTS: South San Joaquin Marsh

Project 10867 – NTS: Cienega Selenium and Nitrate Removal
Project 10942 – SJM Misc. Replacement and Improvements
Project 11419 – Tustin Legacy Well 1 Site Acquisition and Drilling

Project 11461 – Lake Forest Well 2 Replacement Drilling/Wellhead
Project 11469 – Great Park SAMP Update
Project 21469 – Great Park SAMP Updatej p

Project 24304 – Legacy Park Phase 2, Sewer Lift Station
Project 30317 – PA 39 Bake Parkway Bridge 24” RW Relocation
Project 31469 – Great Park SAMP Update

Additional Projects ?



Irvine Ranch Water District

Capital Budget Schedule

• June 13 – Board Consideration of Capital Budget





































































IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASU RES DASHBOARD

April20ll

Exhibit "A"

Note: The more blue area displayed on the dial, the more favorable the measure.

t,500
1,200

900
600
300

0.20

0.15

0.r0
0.05

Rel iabi I ity-Pota b le/Non pota ble
Target = 200 customer hours

out of service this month

å5=å;'ã!å5Ê9"ä
MWRP Energy Cost per kwh

Target = .0792 cost per kWh

åE=åå8¡Ë5ii.ä
Enterprise Return

Target = 1.0 (net income/goal)
last month

Sewer Spills
Target = 0 Spills

this month

gg=å;'EååEÊ!.ä
Wastewater Cost

Target = $2,014/MG processed
this month

, ,o'l 1,000

åg=å;'8¡Ë5ÊÈã
Overhead Ratio

Target = 1.95 (G&A expenses/
direct labor) this month

1.72 1.00

OCSD CORF Flows
Target =8.80 MGD

CORF flowto OCSD this month

15 4.92

gE¡å;'ãååEÊÈ"i

Water System Cost--Potable
Target = $898/ac-ft delivered

OSHA Recordables
Target = 0 reportable accidents

gE=ås'8¡åEÊ!"ä

Water System Cost-Nonpotable
Target = $565/ac-fr delivered

this month

-

l0
8
6
1
2

10
E
6
4
2

t5
12
9
6
3

2,100

l,8t)0

1,2OO

'i

3,000
2,400
1,800
1,200

u:o

2,50

2,00

1.50

1.00

2,400 951

9¡=ã;'8ÈåEÊEå
Customer Satisfaction

Target = 90% satisfaction

g5=ååã¡Ä5ÊE"ä
Employee Satisfaction

Target = 5.0 score
this month

2,&O

1,800

1,200

600

I
6

4

:

1.05.466.098100

2.O

1,5

1.0

0.5

100

75

50

25

O Targetshown on gauge
00.00 Figure for Current Month

'r ¡ ' r I I t ' ¡' Targetshown on trend graph

-- 

3-month rolling average

i rì. E I of c$- I't " 5 c,!c l -.4- g5Eãåã¡å¡iÈ.ä gE=åå8¡åiÊ¡.e 3;qåå8¡å5Ê!.i

A-1





























Exhibit "C"

RESERVOIR DATA FY 10-11

Storage will be under 200 AF by October 1 as required by Regional Board permit.  Sand Canyon is currently overflowing.

0

160

320

480

640

800

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
(a

.f
.)

Sand Canyon Reservoir Storage (786 a.f.)  

Storage (Actual) Reservoir Management Plan

Page 1 of 2

Rattlesnake storage is on track after responding to storms in December and January.

 

  

0

300

600

900

1200

1500

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
(a

.f
.)

Rattlesnake Reservoir Storage (1,102 a.f.)  

Storage(actual) Reservoir Management Plan

Page 1 of 2



Exhibit "C"

RESERVOIR DATA FY 10-11

Irvine Lake is not spilling due to the installation of the flash boards April 1st.

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
(a

.f
.)

Irvine Lake Storage (25,000 a.f.)  

Storage(actual) Reservoir Management Plan

Page 2 of 2

  

was less than planned due to early rainfall in October.
All Lake Forest reclaimed demand is being supplied from the East Irvine Zone B system. San Joaquin's drawdown

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
(a

.f
.)

San Joaquin Reservoir Storage (3,000 a.f.)

Storage(actual) Reservoir Management Plan

Page 2 of 2

















































































































































































EXHIBIT "A"

S"t**.*,*,"-.*'",,,"*-***,1-î*;i3t3''t,:;1































































To:

Exhibit "4"

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY

Water Code 510910 et seq.

(Lead Agency)

P.O. Bo¡19575
Irvine. CA 92623-9575

(Applicant)

H_eritaqe Fields ElToro. LLC
25 Enterprise. Suite 400
Rt¡so

Project lnformation
Project Title: Heritaoe Fields planninq Areas 30 and s1 (Exhibit A)

ResidentiaÍ No. of dwelling units:

Hotelor mofel: No. of rooms

tr!!!
n
X
n

S_hopping center or busrness: No. of employees@
Commercial office: No. of employees Sq. ttrcf flòor space

I ndustrial, manufacturing or p
Sq. ft. of floor space _
Mixed use (check an
Other

Assessment of Availability of Water Supply

on 

-, 

2011 the Board of Directors of the lrvine Ranch water District (IRWD) approved the
within assessment and made the following determination regarding the above-dàscr¡neO Þioject:

X The projected water demand for the project E was Et was not included in lRWD,s most
recently adopted urban water management plan.

n A sufficient water supply is available for the project.
The total water supplies available to IRWD during normal, single-dry and multiple-dry
years within a2o-year projecfion will meet the prõjected wateidemánd of the Þrojeci in
addítion to the demand of existing and other planned future uses, including, but nôt
limited to, agricultural and manufacturing uses.

n A sufficient water supply is not available for the Project. [Plan for acquiring and
devetoping sufficient suppry attached. water code g r 0g'r r (a)l

The foregoing determination is based on the following Water Supply Assessment lnformation and
supporting information in the records of IRWD.

Signature

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields planning Areas 30/51 (S/1 1)

Date Title



Water Supply Assessment lnformation

Purpose of Assessment

lrvine Ranch Water District ('IRWDT has been identified by the City as a public water
system that will supply water service (both potable and nonpotable) to theþroject identified on
the cover page of this assessment (the "Project"). As the public water system, IRWD is required
by Section 10910 et seq. of the Water Code to provide the City with an ássessment of water
supply availability ('assessment") for defined types of projects. The Project has been found by
the City to be a project requiring an assessment. The City is required to include this
assessment in the environmental document for the Project, and, based on the record, make a
determination whether projected water supplies are sufficient for the Project and existing and
planned uses.

Water Code Section 10910 (the'Assessment LaW') contains the requirements for the
information to be set forth in the assessment.

Prior Water Supply Assessments

IRWD does not allocate particular supplies to any project, but identifies total supplies for
its service area. Because of IRWD's aggregation of demands and supplies, each assessment
completed by IRWD is expected to be generally similar to the most recent assessment, with
changes as needed to take into account changes, if any, in demands and supplies, and any
updated and corrected information obtained by IRWD. Previously assessed'projects'water
demands will be included in the baseline. A newly assessed project's water demand will have
been included in previous water supply assessments for other projects (as part of IRWD's,Tull
build-out" demand) to the extent of any land use planning or other watei demand information for
the project that was available to IRWD.

The Project's water demand was included (as part of IRWD's'Tull build-ouf'demand) in
previous water supply assessments performed by IRWD, based on land use planning
information then available to IRWD. ln this water supply assessment, the Project demand will
be revised in accordance with updated information provided by the applicant ánd included in the
'fuith projecf'demand.

Supportinq Documentation

IRWD prepares two planning documents to guide water supply decision-making.
llryD-t principal planning document is IRWD's "Water Resources Máster Plan" ('WRùe"¡. the
WRMP is a comprehensive document compiling data and analyses that IRWD considers
ngcessary for its planning needs. IRWD also prepares an Urban Water Management plan
("UWMP'), a document required by statute. The UWMP is based on the WRMÞ, but contains
defined elements as listed in the statute (Water Code Section 10631 , et seq.), and as a result, is
more limited than the WRMP in the treatment of supply and demand issues. Therefore, IRWD
primarily relies on its most recent WRMP. (The UWMP is required to be updated in years
ending with 'Iive" and"zero," and IRWD's next update of that document is anticipateð in June
2011.1)

ln addition to the WRMP and the 2005 UWMP mentioned above, other supporting
documentation referenced herein is found in section 6 of this assessment.

1 Extended to July 1,2O11 (Water Code Section 1060g.20)

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields planning A-1



Due to the number of contracts, statutes and other documents comprising IRWD's
written proof of entitlement to its water supplies, in lieu of attachment of such items, they are
identified by title and summarized in Section 2(b) of this assessment (written contracts/proof of
entitlement). copies of the summarized items can be obtained from IRWD.

Assessment Methodolooy

Water use factors; dry-year increases. IRWD employs water use factors to enable it
to assign water demands to the various land use types and aggregate the demands. The water
use factors are based on average water use and incorporate the effect of IRWD's tiered-rate
conservation pricing and its other water conservation programs. The factors are derived from
historical usage (billing data) and a detailed review of water use factors within the IRWD service
areas conducted as a part of the WRMP. Water demands also reflect normal hydrologic
conditions (precipitation). Lower levels of precipitation and higher temperatures will result in
higher water demands, due primarily to the need for additional water for irrigation. To reflect
this, base (normal) WRMP water demands have been increased 7"/"in the assessment during
both "single-dr/'and "multiple-dn/'years. This is consistent with IRWD's 2005 UWMP and
historical regional demand variation as documented in the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California's ("MWD's") lntegrated Resources Plan (1996) (Volume 1, page 2-10).

Planning horizon. For consistency with IRWD's WRMP, the assessment reviews
demands and supplies through the year 2031, which is considered to represent build-out or
"ultimate developmenf'.

Assessment of demands. Water demands are reviewed in this assessment for three
development projections (to 2031 ):

¡ Existinq and committed demand (without the Proiect) ("baseline"). This provides a
baseline condition as of the date of this assessment, consisting of demand from existing
development, plus demand from development that has both approved zoning and (if
required by the Assessment Law) an adopted water supply assessment.

. Existino and committed demand. plus the Proiect ('\rvith-proiect'). This projection adds
the Project water demands to the baseline demands.

o FUIIWRMP build-out ('Tull build-out"). ln addition to the Project, this projection adds
potential demands for all presently undeveloped areas of IRWD based on current
general plan information, modified by more specific information available to IRWD, as
more fully described in Chapter 2 of the WRMP.

Assessment of suppftbs. For comparison with demands, water supplies are classified
as currently available or under development

oCurrently available supplies include those that are presently operational, and those that
will be operationalwithin the next several years. Supplies expected to be operational in
the next several years are those having completed or substantially completed the
environmental and regulatory review process, as well as having necessary contracts (if
any) in place to move fonuard. These supplies are in various stages of planning, design,
or construction.

A-2
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning ^rca) ov/u, \r/ r r,/



. ln general, supplies under developmenf may necessitate the preparation and
completion of environmental documents, regulatory approvals, and/or contracts prior to
full construction and implementation.

IRWD is also evaluating the development of additional supplies that are not included in either
currently available or under-development supplies for purposes of this assessment. As outlined
in the WRMP, prudent water supply and financial planning dictates that development of supplies
be phased over time consistent with the growth in demand.

Water supplies available to IRWD include several sources: groundwater pumped from
the Orange County groundwater basin (including the lrvine Subbasin); captured local (native)
surface water; reclaimed wastewater, and supplemental imported water supplied by MWD
through the Municipal Water District of Orange County ('MWDOC"). The supply-demand
comparisons in this assessment are broken down among the various sources, and are further
separated into potable and nonpotable water sources.

Comparison of demand and supply. The three demand projections noted above
(baseline, with-project and full build-out) are compared with supplies in the following ways:

. On a hotal annualquantity basis (stated in acre{eet per year (AFY)).

o On a peak-flow (maximum day) basis (stated in cubic feet per second (cfs)).

o Under three climate conditions: base (normal) conditions and single-dry and multiple-
dry year conditions. (Note: These conditions are compared for annualdemands and not
lor peak-flot¡¡demands. Peak-flow is a measure of a water delivery system's ability to
meet the highest day's demand of the fluctuating demands that will be experienced in a
year's time. Peak demands occur during the hot, dry season and as a result are not
appreciably changed by dry-year conditions; dry-year conditions do affect annual
demand by increasing the quantity of water needed to supplement normal wet-season
precipitation.)

Summary of Results of Demand-Supplv Comparisons

Listed below are Figures provided in this assessment, comparing projected potable and
nonpotable water supplies and demands under the three development projections:

Figure 1: Normal Year Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 2: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand - potable Water
Figure 3: Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 4: Maximum-Day Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 5: Normal Year Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water
Figure 6: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water
Figure 7: Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water
Figure 8: Maximum-Day Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water

It can be observed in the Figures that IRWD's supplies remain essentially constant
between normal, single-dry and multiple-dry years. This result is due to the fact that
groundwater and MWD imported water account for all of IRWD's potable supply, and reclaimed
water, groundwater and imported water comprise most of IRWD's nonpotable supply.
Groundwater production typically remains constant or increases in cycles of dry years, even if

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning A

A-3



overdraft of the basin temporarily increases, as groundwater producers reduce their demand on
imported supplies to secure reliability. (See Section 4 herein.) As to imported water, MWD's
2010 Regional Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP) shows that MWD can maintain
reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in past dry periods through 2035,
including a repeat of the 1990-1992 multiple dry-year hydrology and the 1977 single dry-year
hydrology. (See Section 2(b) (1) "IMPORTED SUPPLY - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION," betow,
for a summary of information provided by MWD.) Reclaimed water production also remains
constant, and is considered "drought-proof" as a result of the fact that sewage flows remain
virtually unaffected by dry years. Only a small portion of IRWD's nonpotable supply, native
water captured in lrvine Lake, is reduced in single-dry and multiple-dry years. The foregoing
factors also serve to explain why there is no difference in IRWD's supplies between single-dry
and multiple-dry years.

A review of the Figures indicates the following:

o Currently available supplies of potable water are adequate to meet projected annual
demands for both the baseline and with-projecf demand projections under the normal
and both dry-year conditions through the year 2015. (Figures 1, 2 and B.)

r Meeting both single- and multiple-dry-year annual demands Íor full buitd-outwill require
the completion of under-development supplies. (Figures 2 and 3.)

o Adequate currently available potable water supply capacity is available to meet peak-
flow (maximum day) demands for all demand projections through the year 2031. (Figure
4.)

o With respect to nonpotable water, currently available supplies are adequate to meet
projected annual demands for both lhe baseline and with-projecf demand projections
under both dry-year conditions through the year 2020. (Figures 5,6,7 and 8). IRWD is
proceeding with the implementation of under-development nonpotable supplies, as
shown in the Figures, to improve local reliability during dry-year conditions.

The foregoing Figures provide an overview of IRWD potable and nonpotable water supply
capabilities. More detailed information on the anticipated development and use of supplies,
which incorporates source costs and reliability issues, is provided in the WRMP.

MargÍns of safety, The Figures and other information described in this assessment
show that IRWD's assessment of supply availability contains several margins of safety or
buffers:

. "Reserve" water supplies (excess of supplies over demands) will be available to serve
as a buffer against inaccuracies in demand projections, future changes in land use, or
alterations in supply availability.

o The potential exists for the treatment and conversion of some reserve nonpotable
supplies to potable water.

. Conservative estimates of annual potable and nonpolable imporfedsupplies have
been made based on connected delivery capacity (by application of peaking factors as
described below in Section 2, footnote 1); additionalsupplies are expected to be
available from these sources, based on legal entitlements, historical uses and

A-4
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning I



information provided by MWD. ln addition to MWD's existing regionalsupply
assessments, this assessment has considered MWD information concerning recent
events. See "Flecent Actions on Delta pumping,,, below.

o lnformation provided by MWD, as the imported water supplier, concerning the
adequacy of its regional supplies, summarized herein, demonstrates MWD's inclusion of
reserves in its regional supply assessments. ln addition to MWD's existing regional
supply assessments, this assessment has considered MWD information concerning
recent events. See "flecent Actions on Delta pumping,,' below.

o Although groundwater supply amounts shown in this assessment assume production
levels within applicable basin production percentages described herein, production of
groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages on a short-term basis,
providing additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.

Recent Actions on Delta Pumpinq. The Sacramento/San Joaquin Delta (Delta) is a
vulnerable component in both the State and Federal systems to convey water from nortlrern
portions of California to areas south of the Delta. lssues associated with the Delta have
generally been known for years; however, most recently, the continuing decline in the number of
endangered Delta smelt resulted in the filing of litigation challenging permits for the operation of
the Delta pumping facilities. On August 31, 2007, a Federal court ordered interim protective
measures for the endangered Delta smelt, including operational limits on Delta pumping, which
will have an effect on State Water Project (SWP) operations and supplies in 2008 and
subsequent years. On June 4,2009, a federal biological opinion imposed rules that will further
restrict water diversions from the Delta to protect endangered salmon and other endangered
fish species. At present, several proceedings concerning Delta operations are ongoing to
evaluate options to address Delta smelt impacts and other environmental concerns. ln-addition
to the regulatory and judicial proceedings to address immediate environmental concerns, the
Delta Vision process and Bay-Delta Conservation Plan process are defining long-term solutions
for the Delta (MWD 2010 IRP Update). Prior to the 2Q07 court decision, MWD'é Board
approved a Delta Action Plan in May 2QO7 that described short, mid and long-term conditions
and the actions to mitigate potential supply shortages and to develop and implement long-term
solutions. To comprehensively address the impacts of the SWP cut back on MWD's water
supply development targets, MWD brought to its Board a strategy and work plan to update the
long-term lntegrated Resources Plan (lRP) in December 2007. As part of the IRP Update,
MWD developed a region-wide collaborative process that included a broad-based stakeholder
involvement. MWD held several stakeholder forums in 2008 and 2009 and the MWD Board
adopted the 2010 IRP Update on October 12,2010. ln the 2010 IRP Update, MWD identified
changes to the long-term plan and established direction to address the range of potential
changes in water supply planning. The IRP also discusses dealing with uncertainties related to
impacts of climate change (see additional discussion of this below) as well as actions to protect
endangered fisheries. Based on MWD's Findings and Conclusions as stated in the MWD 2OjO
IRP Update, MWD's reliability goal that full-service demands at the retail level will be satisfied
for allforeseeable hydrologic conditions remains unchanged in the 2O1O IRP Update, and MWD
willaccomplish this through its core resources strategies. The 2010 IRP Update emphasizes an
evolving approach and suite of actions to address the water supply challenges that are posed
by uncertain weather patterns, regulatory and environmental restrictions, water quality impacts
and changes in the state and the region. MWD's Adaptive Resource Management Sirategy
includes three components: Core Resources Strategy, Supply Buffer lmplementation and
Foundational Actions which together provides the basis for the 2010 IRP Update. The 2010 lRp
Update expands the concept of developing a planning buffer from the 2OO4 IRP Update by

A-5
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar



implementing a supply buffer equalto 10 percent of the total retail demand. MWD will
collaborate with the member agencies to implement this buffer through complying with Senate
Bill 7 which calls for the state to reduce per capita water use 20 percent by the year 2Q20.

IRWD's Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD: MWD states it is
sufficiently reliable to meet full-service demands at the retail level for all foreseeable hydrologic
conditions. For purposes of ensuring a conservative analysis, IRWD has compiled information
from the prior "MWD IRP lmplementation Reporf' (October 2O1O) and MWD's RUWMP
(November 2010), to provide information in this assessment relative to how reduced SWP
supplies could potentially affect IRWD's supplies from MWD.

Based on IRWD's evaluation of MWD's SWP supplies, IRWD estimates lhallhe 22o/o
used by MWD's October 2007 IRP lmplementation Report as a potential reduction of MWD's
SWP supplies conservatively translates to approximately 160/o reduction in all of MWD's
imported supplies over the years 2010 through 2035.2 For this purpose it is assumed that
MWD's total supplies consist only of imported SWP and Colorado deliveries. As shown in
MWD's RUWMP (Tables A.3-7), SWP deliveries on average over the 2}-year period are
1,752,000 acre-feet and Colorado average supplies are 656,000 acre-feet. A22% reduction of
SWP supplies equates to 385,400 acre-feet which is 16% of MWD's total imported supplies.
Based on this estimate, this assessment projects a 16% reduction in MWD supplies available to
IRWD for the years 2010 through 2035, using IRWD's connected capacity without any water
supply allocation imposed by MWD. This reduction in MWD supplies is reflected in Figures 1, 2,
3,5,6, and7.

As an alternative means of analyzin g lhe 22Vo stated reduction, Figures 1a, 2a, and 3a
show IRWD estimated supplies in all of the 5-year increments (average and single and multiple
dry years) under a short-term MWD allocation scenario whereby MWD declares Shortage Stage
2 and a 1Oo/o cutback is applied to IRWD's actual usage rather than its connected capacity. ln
February 2009, MWD adopted a Water Supply Allocation Plan based on its declared level of
shortage. ln response to potential water shortages and a request by MWD to have water
service providers within its service area adopt a water conservation ordinance, in February
2009, IRWD updated Section 15 of its Rules and Regulations - Water Conservation and Water
Supply Shortage Program and also updated its Water Shortage Contingency Plan which is a
supporting document for Section 15. Section 15 of the Rules and Regulations serves as
IRWD's "conservation ordinance". As stated in IRWD's Water Shortage Contingency Plan, use
of local supplies, storage and other supply augmentation measures can mitigate shortages, and
are assumed to be in use to the maximum extent possible during declared shoftage levels.

2 MWD's 2010 RUWMP cites to DWR's Water Allocation Analysis dated March 22,z}1},which incorporated the
Delta smelt biological opinion's effect on SWP operations, export restrictions could reduce deliveries to MWD by 1S0
to 200 thousand acre-feet for 2010. Assuming this estimated SWP reduction amount is included in the final RUWMP
adopted by MWD, that amount in acre feet would be equivalent to about 12o/o reduclion in SWP supplies, a smaller
percentage reduction than MWD's 2007 figure oi 22% that was used by IRWD for purposes of this analysis.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning

A-6



Under shortage scenarios, IRWD may need to supplement supplies with production of
groundwater, which can exceed the applicable basin production percentage on a short-term
basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.3 ln addition, if needed
resultant net shortage levels can be addressed by demand reduction programs as described in
IRWD's Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

Listed below are Figures provided comparing projected potable water supplies and demands in
all of the five year increments, under a temporary MWD allocation scenario:

Figure 1a: Normal Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) - Potable Water
Figure 2a: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) - Potable Water
Figure 3a: Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated)- Potable Water

It can be noted that IRWD's above approach is conservative, in that IRWD evaluates the
effect of the 16% reduction through 2031 and shows the effect of current allocation scenarios in
all of the five-year increments but MWD reports that it has made significant progress in other
water resource categories such as transfers, groundwater storage and developing other local
resources, and supplies will be available from these resources over the longterm.

Climate Change. The California Department of Water Resources ('DWR") released a
report "Progress on lncorporating Climate Change into Management of California's Water
Resources" (July 2006), considering the impacts of climate change on the State's water supply.
DWR emphasizes that "the report represents an example of an impacts assessment based on
four scenarios defining an expected range of potential climate change impacts." DWR's major
goal is to extend the analysis for long-term water resource planning from "assessing impacts" to
"assessing risk." The report presents directions for further work in incorporating climate change
into the management of California's water resources. Emphasis is placed on associating
probability estimates with potential climate change scenarios in order to provide policymakers
with both ranges of impacts and the likelihoods associated with those impacts. DWR's report
acknowledges'that all results presented in this report are preliminary, incorporate several
assumptions, reflect a limited number of climate change scenarios, and do not address the
likelihood of each scenario. Therefore, these results are not sufficient by themselves to make
policy decisions."

ln MWD's 2010 IRP Update, MWD recognizes there is a significant uncertainty in the
impact of climate change on water supply and changes in weather patterns could significantly
affect water supply reliability. MWD plans to hedge against supply and environmental
uncertainties by implementing a supply buffer equivalent to 10 percent of total retail demand.
This buffer will be implemented through meeting the SB7 water use efficiency goals,
implementing aggressive adaptive actions, development of local supplies and transfers.

u 
ln these scenarios, it is anticipated that other water suppliers who produce water from the Orange County Basin will

also experience cutbacks of imported supplies and will increase groundwater production and that Orange County
Water District (OCWD) imported replenishment water may also be cutback. The OCWD's'2008-2009 Engineer,s
Report on the groundwater conditions, water supply and basin utilization" references a report which recommends a
basin management strategy that provides general guidelines for annual basin refill or storage decrease based on the
level of accumulated overdraft. lt states, "an accumulated overdraft of 500,000 AF is only acceptable for short
durations due to drought conditions...and an optimal basin management target of 100,000 AF of accumulated
overdraft provides sufficient storage space to accommodate increased supplies from one wet year while also
providing enough water in storage to offset decreased supplies during a two- to three-year drought." MWD
replenishment water is a supplemental source of recharge water and OCWD estimates other main supply sources for
recharge are available.

A-7
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning.



Per MWD's RUWMP, MWD continues to incorporate current climate change science into
its planning efforts. As stated in MWD's RUWMP, the 2010 IRP Update supportslhe MWD
Board adopted principles on climate change by: 1) Supporting reasonable, economically viable,
and technologically feasible management strategies for reducing impacts on water supply and
2) Supporting flexible "no regret" solutions that provide water supply and quality benefits while
increasing the ability to manage future climate change impacts, and 3) Evaluating staff
recommendations regarding climate change and water resources against the California
Environmental Quality Act to avoid adverse effects on the environment. Potential climate
change impacts on state, regional and local water supplies and relevant information for the
Orange County hydrologic basin and Santa Ana Watershed have not been sufficiently
developed at this time to permit IRWD to assess and quantify the effect of any such impact on
its conclusions in the Assessment.

Catastrophic Supply lnterruption Ptanning. MWD has developed Emergency
Storage Requirements (2010 RUWMP) to safeguard the region from catastrophic loss ót water
supply. MWD has made substantial investments in emergency storage and MWD has based its
planning on a 100% reduction in its supplies for a period of six months. The emergency plan
outlines that under such a catastrophe, non-firm service deliveries would be suspended, and
firm supplies would be restricted by a mandatory cutback of 25 percent from normal year
demand deliveries. ln addition, MWD discusses the long term Delta plan in its 2010 RUWMP
(pages 3-18 to 3-21). IRWD has addressed supply interruption planning in its WRMP and
UWMP.

Detailed Assessment

1. Supply and demand comparison

Comparisons of IRWD's average annual and peak (maximum day) demands and
supplies, under baseline (existing and committed demand, without the Project), with-
proiect (baseline plus Project), and fullbuild-ouf development projections, are shown in
the following Figures 1-4 (potable water), Figures 5-8 (nonpotable water) and Figures
1a,2a, and 3a (short term MWD allocation potable water). See also the "Recent Actions
on Delta Pumping" above.

A-8
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas g0/S1 (5/1 1)



Figure 1

IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

201 5 2031

Notes: By agreement, IRWD is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available
supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD lmported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

A-g
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30i-. r,. . .,

(E
o

õ 75,000
CL

ootr
Io
9 50.000<t

FUtUre urounowaler

: MWD lmported

trvtne uesafier

I DRWF/DATS/OPA

--{--- Baseline Demand

- È - Demand with Project

+ WRMPBuild-out Demand

(in acre-feet per Vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)
DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supply Capability

41,929
37,900

5,640

85.469

41,929
37,900

5,640

15,600
101 ,069

41,929
37,900

5,640

22,100
107,569

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 18,069

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
118,069

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

56,353
56,402
56,933

70,989
71,281
71.725

80,140
80,677
80,961

84,575 87,440
85,355 88,415
85,445 87,836

Reserve Supply with Proiect 29,067 29.788 26,893 32.714 29.654



Figure 2
IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Go

b 75,000
CL

oo
lJ.

Iob so,ooo

-l 

Future Groundwater

-MWDtmported

-l 

lrvine Desalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---¡--- Baseline Demand

- tÞ - Demand w¡th Project

+ WRMP Build-out Demand

2015 2131

(in acre-feet per Vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2131

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)
DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

41,929
37,900

5,640

85.469

41,929
37,900

5,640

15,600
101 ,069

41,929
37,900

5,640

22,100
107,569

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 18,069

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 18,069

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

60,298
60,350
60.919

75,958
76,271
76.746

85,750
86,324
86.629

90,495 93,561
91,330 94,604
91.426 93.985

Reserve Supply with Proiect 24,550 24,323 20$40 26,643 24,084

Notes: Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Regional Urban Water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage
of groundwater under drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan). Demands increased 7o/o from Normal-Year. By agreement, IRWD
is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments
(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 160/" reduction off of average connected capacity.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 3 A-10



Figure 3
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

100,000

2010 2015 2131

(in acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2131

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supply Capability

41,929
37,900

5,640

85.469

41,929
37,900

5,640

15,600
101 .069

41,929
37,900

5,640

22,100
107,569

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 19,069

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
118.069

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

60,298
60,350
60,919

75,958
76,271
76,746

85,750
86,324
86,629

90,495 93,561
91,330 94,604
91,426 93,985

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 25,1 19 24,798 21 ,245 26,739 23,465

Notes: Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Regional Urban Water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage
of groundwater under drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan). Demands increased 7o/o Írom Normal-Year. By agreement, IRWD
is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments
(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 16o/o reduction off of average connected capacity.

IEo
L 75.000o
CL

oo
l¡.

Io
b 50,000

-¡ 

Future Groundwater

:MwDlmported

-l 

lrvine Desalter

I DRWF/DATS/OPA

--{--- Baseline Demand

- È - Demand with Project

+ WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas í

A-1 1



Figure 4
IRWD Maximum-Day Supply & Demand - Potable Water

250

ø
o
p 200

=ooo
a¡,

b tso
CL

oo
o
õ 100

=o

: Futurecroundwater

-rMWDlmported
: lrvineDesalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---l--- Baseline Demand

- t- - Demand w¡th Project

+ WRMP Bu¡ld-out Demand

lin cfs) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)
DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development
Future Groundwater
Maximum Suoolv Caoabilitv

124.1

91.4
10.6

226.1

124.1
91.4
10.6

12.7
238.8

124.1

91.4
10.6

30.7
256.8

124.1

91.4
10.6

48.7
274.8

124.1

91.4
10.6

48.7
274.8

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

140.1
140.2
141.5

176.5
177.2
178.3

199.2
200.6
201.3

210.3
212.2
212.4

217.4
219.8
218.4

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 84.6 60.5 55.5 62.4 56.4

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage F¡elds Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 1)

N12



Figure 5

Go--- 40,000
o
CL

oolt
Io
o

20,000

2010 2015

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 16o/o reduction off of average connected capacity.

IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

: Future MWRP&LAWFIP

æ MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

-Nativewater: lrvineDesalter

E Exist¡ng MWRP&LAWRP

---l--- Basel¡ne Demand

- 
t- - Demand w¡th Project

* WRMPBu¡ld-out Demand

lin acre-feet oer vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)
lrvine Desalter
Native Water
Supplies Under Development
Future MWRP&LAWRP
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

10,100
57.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

10,100
57.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

10,100
57.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

10,100
57.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

10,100
57.035

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

36,335
36,152
36,376

32,303
32,023
32,560

33,198
32,670
33,661

34,948 36,019
34,158 35,083
3s,608 36,845

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 20,659 20,659 24,475 23.374 20,190

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage F¡elds Planning Areas 3

A-13



Figure 6

2010

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

MWD lmported Supplies are shown at 160lo reduction off of average connected capacity.

IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

(E
o
I 4o,ooo
o
CL

oolr
¡o
o

20,000

E- FutuTe MWRP&LAWFìP

I- MWDlmported (Baker, ILP)

-Nat¡vewater

-l 

lru¡neDesalter

- 

Ex¡stingMWRP&LAWRP

---!--- Baseline Demand

- t - Demand with Project

* WRMP Build-out Demand

(in acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)
lrvine Desalter
Native Water
Supplies Under Development
Future MWRP&LAWRP
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

18,657
20,390

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,380

3,ggg
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,390

3,899
1,000

10,100
54.035

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

38,878
38,683
38,922

34,565
34,264
34,839

35,521
34,957
36,017

37,394 38,541
36,549 37,539
38,101 39,424

Reserve Supply with Proiect 15,352 19,771 19,078 17,486 16,496

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Areas

A-14



Figure 7
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Go

b 4o,ooo
CL

oolt
I
o
o

20,000

-I 

Fulure N¡WRP&LAWHP

E l\¡WDlmported (Baker, ILP)

-Nativewater¡:¡ lrvine Desalter

- 

ExistingMWRP&LAWRP

---t--- Baseline Demand

- t- - Demand wilh Project

-.ts- 
WRlt¡lP Bu¡ld-out Demand

(in acre-feet per year) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Nonpotable Suoplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)
lrvine Desalter
Native Water
Supplies Under Develooment
Future MWRP&LAWRP
Maximum Supply Capability

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

38,878
38,683
38,922

34,565
34,264
34,839

35,521
34,957
36.017

37,394 38,541
36,549 37,539
38.101 39.424

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 15,352 19,771 19,078 17,486 16,496

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

MWD lmported Supplies are shown at 160/o reduction off of average connected capacity.

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Areas 30,-, ,-. . .,

A-15



Figure I
IRWD Maximum-Dry Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

150

: Future N/WRP&LAWRP

- 

Nilwolmported (Baker, ILP)

I Nativewater

-l 

lrvineDesalter

il Ex¡stingMWFìP&LAWRP

---¡--- Basel¡ne Demand

- 
t- - Demand wìth Project

+- WRMP Build-out Demand

o
o
î, 12o
ç,
ooo
U,

be0
CL

oo
.g 60
ft
o

2010 2015

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

lin cfs) 2005 2010 2015 2020 2031

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP
lrvine Desalter
Native Water
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

Supplies Under Development
Future MWRP&LAWRP
Maximum Suoolv Caoabilitv

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0

174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0

174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0

174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0
174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0

174.7
Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

111.5
1 10.6
112.4

114.6
112.8
116.2

124.4
121.1

127.2

125.5
124.8
125.6

120.7
117.9
123.0

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 49.1 62.3 58.5 51.8 47.5

Waler Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/br (c/ r U

A-16



Figure 1a
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Under Temporary MWD Allocation*
125,000

100,000

(ú
o

b 75,000
CL

oo
IT

Iob so,ooo

FUIUTe t:TOUnOWAIeT

:MwDlmported

: lrvineDesalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---t--- Baseline Demand

- ¡- - Demand w¡lh Project

+ WRMP Bu¡ld-out Demand

(in acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)
DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

25,000
37,900

5,640

68.540

26,275
37,900

5,640

15,600
85,415

27,616
37,900

5,640

22,100
93,256

29,024
37,900

5,640

32,600
105,164

29,608
37,900

5,640

32,600
105.748

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

56,353
56,402
56.402

70,989
71,281
71.725

80,140
80,677
80.961

84,575
85,355
85.445

87,440
88,415
87.836

Reserve Supply with Proiect 12,138 14,134 12,579 1g,g0g 17,332

Notes: By agreement, IRWD is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available
supplies for TIG developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD lmported Supplies as estimated under a short-term 10olo allocation,
Shortage Stage 2 in all of the 5-year increments. However, it is likely that such a scenario would only be temporary.
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin
percentages on a short-term basis. IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency measures
as described in the UWMP.

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Areas 30
A-17



Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Figure 2a
IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

125,000

100,000

2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

(in acre-feet oer vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

25,000
37,900

5,640

68.540

27,589
37,900

5,640

15,600
86,729

28,968
37,900

5,640

22,100
94,608

30,417
37,900

5,640

32,600
106,557

31,938
37,900

5,640

32,600
108,078

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

64,519
64,575
65,183

75,958
76,271
76,746

85,750
86,324
86,629

90,495 93,561
91,330 94,604
91,426 93.985

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 3.357 9.983 7.980 15.131 14.093
Notes: Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Regional Urban Water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage
of groundwater under drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan). Demands increased Tlolrom Normal-Year. By agreemenl, IRWD
is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments
(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

.For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD lmported Supplies as estimated under a short-term 10% allocation,
Shortage Stage 2 in all of the S-year increments. However, it is likely that such a scenario would only be temporary.
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin
percentages on a short-term basis. IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency measures

as described in the UWMP.

A.18
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30

Go
L 75.000
0,
CL

o
(¡)lr
IE 5o.oooo

-¡ 

Future Groundwater

-MWDtmported

-¡ 

lrvine Desalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

--{--- Baseline Demand

- Þ - Demand wlth Project

+ WRMP Build-out Demand



Figure 3a

125,000

Go
L 75'000
o
CL

o
r¡)
lJ.

IE so.oooo

IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water
Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

1o0,0oo

2010 2015

(in acre{eet per Vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)
DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Development

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

25,000
37,900

5,640

68,540

27,589
37,900
5,640

15,600
86,729

28,968
37,900

5,640

22,100
94,608

30,417
37,900

5,640

32,600
106,557

31,938
37,900

5,640

32,600
108,078

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Buíld-out Demand

64,519
64,575
65,183

75,958
76,271
76.746

85,750
86,324
86,629

90,495 93,561
91,330 94,604
91.426 93.985

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 3,357 10,458 8,284 15,227 13,473

Notes: Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Regional Urban Water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage
of groundwater under drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan). Demands increased 7o/" lrom Normal-Year. By agreement, IRWD
is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments
(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

.For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD lmported Supplies as estimated under a shorþterm 10% allocation,
Shortage Stage 2 in all of the s-year increments. However, it is likely that such a scenario would only be temporary.
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin
percentages on a short-term basis. IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency measures
as described in the UWMP.

f::::::= Future Groundwater

-tMWDlmported: lrvineDesalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---¡--- Baseline Demand

- r- - Demand w¡th Project

+ WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/
A-19



2. lnformation concerning supplies
(a)(1) Existing sources of identified water suoplv for the proposed projlrct: IRWD does not allocate

particular supplies to any project, but identifies total supplies for its service area, as shown in the following table:

Annual by Category
(AFY)

Current Supplies
Potable - lmported

East Orange County Feeder No. 2
Allen-McOolloch Pipeline*
Orange County Feeder

Potable - Groundwater
Dyer Road Wellfield
OPA Well
Deep Aquifer Treatment System-DATS
lrvine Desalter

Total Potable Current Supplies
Nonpotable - Reclaimed Water
MWRP (18 mgd)
LAWRP (5.5 mgd)

Nonpotable - lmported
Baker Aqueduct
lrvine Lake Pipeline

Nonpotable - Groundwater
I rvine Desalter-Nonpotable

Nonpotable Native
lrvine Lake

Total Nonpotable Current Supplies

93,456

23,315

24,262

3,898

55,475
148,931

Supplies Under Development
Potable Supplies
Wells 21 & 22
Well 106
Well53
Future OPA Wells
Anaheim wellfield
Wells 51 & 52

Tustin Legacy wells
Total Potable Under Development Supplies

Nonpotable Supplies: Future MWRP&LAWRP Reclaimed
Total Under Development
Total Supplies

Potable Supplies
Nonpotable Supplies
Total Supplies (Current and Under

47,O50

126,056
69,925

1 Based on convert¡ng maximum day capacity to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 1.8 (see Footnote 3, page 22).

2 Contract amount - See Potable Supply-Groundwate(iii).

3 Contract amount - See Potable Supply-Groundwater (iv) and (v). Max¡mum day well capacity is compatible with contract amount.

4 MWRP 18.0 mgd treatment capacity (17,4OO AFY RW production) and LAWRP 5.5 mgd tertiary treatment capacity (5,975 AFY)

5 Based on converting maximum day capacity to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 2.5 (see Footnote 3, page 22).

6 Based on IRWD's proport¡on of lrvine Lake imported water storage; Actual ILP capacity would allow the use of additional imported

water from MWD through the Sântiago Lateral.

7 Contract amount - See Nonpotable Supply-Groundwater (i) and (ii). Maximum day well capacity (cfs) is compatible with contract amount.

I Based on 70 years historical average of Santiago Creek lnflow into lrvine Lake.

I Estimated combined capacity of wells.

10 Future est¡mated MWRP & LAWRP reclaimed water production.
*64.7 cfs is current assigned capacity; based on increased peak flow, IRWD can purchase 10 cfs more (see page 23 (bxl Xiii))

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 3 A-20



(b) Required information concerninq currentlv available and under-development water
supplv entitlements, water riohts and water service contracts:

(1) Written contracts or other proof of entitlement.a s

¡POTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED6

Potable imported water seruice connections (currently available).

(r) Potable imported water is delivered to IRWD at various service connections to
the imported water delivery system of The Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California ("MWD"): service connections CM-014 and OC-7 (Orange
County Feeder); CM-10, CM-12, OC-38, OC-39, OC-57, OC-58, OC-63 (East
Orange County Feeder No. 2); and OC-68, OC-71, OC-72, OC-73ngA, OC-74,
OC-75, OC-83, OC-84, OC-87 (Allen-McOolloch Pipeline). IRWD's entitlements
regarding service from the MWD delivery system facilities are described in the
following paragraphs and summarized in the above Table ((eXaXt)). ¡RWD
receives imported water service through MunicipalWater District of Orange
County ("MWDOC"), a member agency of MWD.

Al I e n-M cCol I och P i pel i ne (" AM P " ) (cu rrently avai I able).

(ii) Agreement For Sale and Purchase of Allen-McColloch Pipeline, dated as of
July 1, 1994 (Metropolitan Water District Agreement No. 4623) ("AMP Sale
Agreement"). Under the AMP Sale Agreement, MWD purchased the Allen-
McOolloch Pipeline (formerly known as the "Diemer lntertie") from MWDOC, the
MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation and certain agencies, including IRWD and
Los Alisos Water District ("LAWD"),7 identified as "Participants" therein. Section
5.02 of the AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to meet IRWD's and the other
Participants' requests for deliveries and specified minimum hydraulic grade lines
at each connection serving a Participant, subject to availability of water. MWD

o ln some instances, the contractual and other legal entitlements referred to in the following descriptions are
stated in terms of flow capacities, in cubic feet per second ("cfs"). ln such instances, the cfs flows are converted to
volumes of AFY for purposes of analyzing supply sufficiency in this assessment, by dividing the capacity by a peaking
factor of 1.8 (potable) or 2.5 (nonpotable), consistent with maximum day peaking factors used in the WRMP. The
resulting reduction in assumed available annual AFY volumes through the application of these factors recognizes that
connected capacity is provided to meet peak demands and that seasonal variation in demand and limitations in local
storage prevent these capacities from being utilized at peak capacity on a year-round basis. However, the
application of these factors produces a conservatively low estimate of annual AFY volumes from these connections;
additional volumes of water are expected to be available from these sources.

5 ln the following discussion, contractual and other legal entitlements are characterized as e¡ther potable or
nonpotable, according to the characterization of the source of supply. Some of the nonpotable supplies surplus to
nonpotable demand could potentially be rendered potable by the addition of treatment facilities; however, IRWD has
no current plans to do so.

6 See lmported Supply - Additional lnformation, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD
supply.

7 IRWD has succeeded to LAWD's interests in the AMP and other LAWD water supply facilities and rights
mentioned in this assessment, by virtue of the consolidation of IRWD and LAWD on December 31, 2000.

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Pl

A-21



agrees to operate the AMP as any other MWD pipeline. MWD has the right to
operate the AMP on a "utility basis," meaning that MWD need not observe
capacity allocations of the Participants but may use available capacity to meet
demand at any service connection.

The AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to monitor and project AMP demands
and to construct specified pump facilities or make other provision for augmenting
MWD's capacity along the AMP, at MWD's expense, should that be necessary to
meet demands of all of the Participants (Section S.0B).

(iii) Agreement For Allocation of Proceeds of Sale of Allen-McOolloch Pipeline,
dated as of July 1, 1994 (AMP Allocation Agreemenf'). This agreement, entered
into concurrently with the AMP sale Agreement, provided each participant,
including IRWD, with a capacity allocation in the AMP, for the purpose of
allocating the sale proceeds among the Participants in accordance with their prior
contractual capacities adjusted to conform to their respective future demands.
IRWD's capacity under the AMP Allocation Agreement (including its capacity as
legal successor agency to LAWD) is 64.69 cfs at IRWD's first four AMp
connections, 49.69 cfs at IRWD's next five downstream AMP connections and
35.01 and 10.00 cfs, respectively at IRWD's remaining two downstream
connections. The AMP Allocation Agreement further provides that if a
Pafticipant's peak flow exceeds its capacity, the Participant shall "purchase"
additional capacity from the other Participants who are using less than their
capacity, until such time as MWD augments the capacity of the AMp. The
foregoing notwithstanding, as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the
allocated capacities do not alter MWD's obligation under the AMp sale
Agreement to meet all Participants'demands along the AMP, and to augment the
capacity of the AMP if necessary. Accordingly, under these agreements, IRWD
can legally increase its use of the AMP beyond the above-stated capacities, but
would be required to reimburse other Participants from a portion of the proceeds
IRWD received from the sale of the AMP.

(iv)lmprovement Subleases (or "FAP" Subleases) IMWDOC and LAWD;
MWDoc and lRWDl, dated August 1, 1989; 1996 Amended and Restated Allen-
Mccolloch Pipeline subleases [MWDoc and LAWD; MWDoc and IRWD], dated
March 1, 1996. IRWD subleases its AMP capacity, including the capacity it
acquired as successor to LAWD. To facilitate bond financing for the construction
of the AMP, it was provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and
subsequently MWDOC, would have ownership of the pipeline, and the
Participants would be sublessees. As is the case with the AMP Sale Agreement,
the subleases similarly provide that water is subject to availability.

East Orange County Feeder No.2 ("EOCF#2") (currently available),

(v) Agreement For Joint Exercise of Powers For construction, operation and
Maintenance of East Orange County Feeder No. 2, dated July 1 1 , 1961 , as
amended on July 25,1962 and April 26, 1965; Agreement Re capacity Rights ln
Proposed water Line, dated september 1 1, 1961 ('IRWD MWDoc Assignment
Agreement"); Agreement Regarding capacity Rights ln the East orange county
Feeder No. 2, dated August 28,2ooo ('IRWD coastal Assignment Agreement').
East orange county Feeder No. 2 ("EocF#2"), a feeder linking orange county

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar

A-22



with MWD's feeder system, was constructed pursuant to a joint powers
agreement among MWDOC (then called Orange County MunicipalWater
District), MWD, Coastal MunicipalWater District ("Coastal"), Anaheim and Santa
Ana. A portion of IRWD's territory is within MWDOC and the remainder is within
the former Coastal (which was consolidated with MWDOC in 2001). Under the
IRWD MWDOC Assignment Agreement, MWDOC assigned 41 cfs of capacity to
IRWD in the reaches of EOCF#2 upstream of the point known as Coastal
Junction (reaches 1 through 3), and 27 cls in reach 4, downstream of Coastal
Junction. Similarly, under the IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement, prior to
Coastal's consolidation with MWDOC, Coastalassigned to IRWD 0.4 cfs of
capacity in reaches 1 through 3 and 0.6 cfs in reach 4 of EOCF#2. Delivery of
water through EOCF#2 is subject to the rules and regulations of MWD and
MWDOC, and is further subject to application and agreement of IRWD respecting
turnouts.

Orange County Feeder (currently availablel

(vi) Agreernent, dated March 13, 1956. This 1956 Agreement between
MWDOC's predecessor district and the Santa Ana Heights Water Company
('SAHWC') provides for delivery of MWD imported supply to the former SAHWC
service area. SAHWC's interests were acquired on behalf of IRWD through a
stock purchase and IRWD annexation of the SAHWC service area in 1997. The
supply is delivered through a connection to MWD's Orange County Feeder
designated as OC-7.

(vii) Agreement For Transfer of lnterest ln Pacific Coast Highway Water
Transmission and Storage Facilities From The lrvine Company To the lrvine
Ranch Water District, dated April 23, 1984; Joint Powers Agreement For the
Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Sections 1a, 1b and 2 of the Coast
Supply Line, dated June 9, 1989;Agreement, dated January 13, 1955 ('1955
Agreement"). The jointly constructed facility known as the Coast Supply Line
("CSL'), extending southward from a connection with MWD's Orange County
Feeder at Fernleaf Street in Newport Beach, was originally constructed pursuant
to a 1952 agreement among Laguna Beach County Water District ('LBCWD"),
The lrvine Company (TlC) and South Coast County Water District. Portions were
later reconstructed. Under the above-referenced transfer agreement in 1984,
IRWD succeeded to TIC's interests in the CSL. The CSL is presently operated
under the above-referenced 1989 joint powers agreement, which reflects IRWD's
ownership of 10 cfs of capacity. The 1989 agreement obligates LBCWD, as the
managing agent and trustee for the CSL, to purchase water and deliver it into the
CSL for IRWD. LBCWD purchases such supply, delivered by MWD to the
Fernleaf connection, pursuant to the 1955 Agreement with Coastal (now
MWDOC).

oPOTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER

(r) Orange County Water District Act, Water Code App., Ch. 40 ("Act"). IRWD is
an operator of groundwater-producing facilities in the Orange County
Groundwater Basin (the "Basin"). Although the rights of the producers within the
Basin vis a vis one another have not been adjudicated, they nevertheless exist
and have not been abrogated by the Act ($40-77). The rights consist of

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning A

A-23



municipal appropriators' rights and may include overlying and riparian rights.
The Basin is managed by OCWD under the Act, which functions as a statutorily-
imposed physical solution. The Act empowers OCWD to impose replenishment
assessments and basin equity assessments on production and to require
registration of water-producing facilities and the filing of certain reports; however,
OCWD is expressly prohibited from limiting extraction unless a producer agrees
(S 40-2(6) (c)) and from impairing vested rights to the use of water (S 40-77).
Thus, producers may install and operate production facilities under the Act;
OCWD approval is not required. OCWD is required to annually investigate the
condition of the Basin, assess overdraft and accumulated overdraft, and
determine the amount of water necessary for replenishment (540-26). OCWD
has studied the Basin replenishment needs and potential projects to address
growth in demand until2020. This is described in detail in the OCWD Master
Plan Report, dated April, 1999. OCWD's analysis has been expanded and
updated through 2025 in its Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan (January,
2006).

(ii) lruine Ranch Water District v. Orange County Water District, OCSC No.
795827. A portion of IRWD is outside the jurisdictional boundary of OCWD.
IRWD is eligible to annex the Santa Ana River Watershed portion of this territory
to OCWD, under OCWD's current annexation policy (Resolution No. 86-2-1S,
adopted on February 19, 1986 and reaffirmed on June 2, 1999), and anticipates
doing so. However, this September 29, 1998, Superior Court ruling indicates that
IRWD is entitled to deliver groundwater from the Basin to the IRWD service area
irrespective of whether such area is also within OCWD.

Dyer Road Wellfield (DWRF) / Deep Aquifer Treatment System (DATS)
(currently available)

(iii) Agreement For Water Production and Transmission Facilities, dated March
18, 1981 , as amended May 2, 1984, September 19, 1990 and November 3, '1 g9g
(the "DRWF Agreement'). The DRWF Agreement, among IRWD, OCWD and
Santa Ana, concerns the development of IRWD's Dyer Road Wellfield ("DRWF'),
within the Basin. The DRWF consists of 16 wells pumping from the non-colored
water zone of the Basin and 2 wells (with colored-water treatment facilities)
pumping from the deep, colored-water zone of the Basin (the colored-water
pofiion of the DRWF is sometimes referred to as the Deep Aquifer Treatment
System or "DATS".) Under the DRWF Agreement, an "equivalent" basin
production percentage (BPP) has been established for the DRWF, currently
28,000 AFY of non-colored water and 8,000 AFY of colored water, provided any
amount of the latter 8,000 AFY not produced results in a matching reduction of
the 28,000 AFY BPP. Although typically IRWD production from the DRWF does
not materially exceed the equivalent BPP, the equivalent BPP is not an extraction
limitation; it results in imposition of monetary assessments on the excess
production. The DRWF Agreement also establishes monthly pumping amounts
for the DRWF. With the addition of the Concentrated Treatment System (CATS),
IRWD has increased the yield of DATS.

Irvine Subbasin / Iruine Desalter (currently available)

(iv) Firsl Amended and Restated Agreement, dated March 11, 2002, as

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Plan

A-24



amended June 15,2006, restating May 5, 1988 agreement ("lrvine Subbasin
Agreementl. TIC has historically pumped agricultural water from the lrvine
Subbasin. (As in the rest of the Basin of which this subbasin is a part, the
groundwater rights have not been adjudicated, and OCWD provides governance
and management under the Act.) The 1988 agreement between IRWD and TIC
provided for the joint use and management of the lrvine Subbasin. The 1988
agreement further provided that the 13,000 AFY annual yield of the lrvine
Subbasin would be allocated 1,000 AFY to IRWD and 12,000 AFY to TlC. Under
the restated lrvine Subbasin Agreement, the foregoing allocations were
superseded as a result of TIC's commencement of the building its Northern
Sphere Area project, with the effect that the Subbasin production capability, wells
and other facilities, and associated rights have been transferred from TIC to
IRWD, and IRWD has assumed the production from the Subbasin. ln
consideration of the transfer, IRWD is required to count the supplies attributable
to the transferred Subbasin production in calculating available supplies for the
Northern Sphere Area project and other TIC development and has agreed that
they will not be counted toward non-TlC development.

A portion of the existing Subbasin water production facilities produce water which
is of potable quality, IRWD could treat some of the water produced from the
Subbasin for potable use, by means of the Desalter and other projects.
Although, as noted above, the Subbasin has not been adjudicated and is
managed by OCWD, TIC reserved water rights from conveyances of its lands as
development over the Subbasin has occurred, and under the lrvine Subbasin
Agreement TIC has transferred its rights to IRWD.

(v/ Second Amended and Restated Agreement Between Oránge County Water
District and lrvine Ranch Water District Regarding the lrvine Desalter Project,
dated June 1 1, 2001, and other agreements referenced therein. This agreement
provides for the extraction and treatment of subpotable groundwater from the
lrvine Subbasin, a portion of the Basin. As is the case with the remainder of the
Basin, IRWD's entitlement to extract this water is not adjudicated, but the use of
the entitlement is governed by the OCWD Act. (See also, discussion of lrvine
Subbasin in the preceding paragraph.) A portion of the product water has been
delivered into the IRWD potable system, and the remainder has been delivered
into the IRWD nonpotable system.

Orange Park Acres (currently available)

On June 1, 2008, through annexation and merger, IRWD acquired the water
system of the former Orange Park Acres Mutual Water company, including well
[OPA Well]. The well is operated within the Orange County Groundwater Basin.

lrvine Wells (under development)

(vi) IRWD is pursuing the installation of production facilities in the west lrvine,
Anaheim, Tustin Legacy and Tustin Ranch portions of the Basin. These
groundwater supplies are considered to be under development; however, four
wells have been drilled and have previously produced groundwater, three wells
have been drilled but have not been used as production wells to date, a site for
an additional well and treatment facility has been acquired by IRWD. The

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning
A-25



production facilities can be constructed and operated under the Act; no statutory
or contractual approval is required to do so. An agreement with the City of
Anaheim would be developed for production within Anaheim. Appropriate
environmental review would be conducted for each facility. See discussion of
the Act under Potable Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (i), above.

oNONPOTABLE SUPPLY - RECLAIMED

Water Reclamation Plants (currently available)

Water Code Section 1210. IRWD supplies its own reclaimed water from
wastewater collected by IRWD and delivered to IRWD's Michelson Water
Reclamation Plant (MWRP) and Los Alisos Water Reclamation Plant (LAWRP).
MWRP currently has a permitted capacity of 18 million gallons per day (MGD)
and LAWRP currently has a permitted capacity of 5.5 MGD. Water Code Section
1210 provides that the owner of a wastewater treatment plant operated for the
purposes of treating wastes from a sanitary sewer system holds the exclusive
right to the treated effluent as against anyone who has supplied the water
discharged into the sewer system. IRWD's permits for the operation of MWRP
and LAWRP allow only irrigation and other customer uses of reclaimed water,
and do not permit stream discharge of reclaimed water; thus, no issue of
downstream appropriation arises, and IRWD is entitled to deliver all of the
effluent to meet contractual and customer demands.

Water Reclamation Plant Expansion (under development)

IRWD has prepared a Final Environmental lmpact Report for the Michelson
water Reclamation Plant Phase 2 and 3 capacity Expansion Project (February,
2006) and the expansion project is under construction. With this expansion,
IRWD plans to increase its capacity on the existing MWRP site to produce
sufficient reclaimed water to meet the projected demand in the year 2031. (lnitial
upgrades that are within existing permit authorizations and CEQA compliance
are completed) Additional reclamation capacity will augment local nonpotable
supplies and improve reliability.

oNONPOTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED8

Baker Pipeline (currently available)

Santiago Aqueduct Commission Joint Powers Agreement, dated September 1 1,
1961, as amended December 20,1974, January 13, 1978, November 1 ,197A,
September 1, 1981, October 22,1986, and July 8, lggg (the "SAC Agreemenf');
Agreement Between lrvine Ranch Water District and Carma-Whiting Joint
Venture Relative to Proposed Annexation of Certain Property to lrvine Ranch
Water District, dated May 26, 1981 (the'Whiting Annexation Agreement').
service connections oc-13/134, oc-33/334. The imported untreated water
pipeline initially known as the Santiago Aqueduct and now known as the Baker

8 See lmported Supply - Additional lnformation, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD
supply.

A-26
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning



Pipeline was constructed under the SAC Agreement, a joint powers agreement.
The Baker Pipeline is connected to MWD's Santiago Lateral. IRWD's capacity in
the Baker Pipeline includes the capacity it subleases as successor to LAWD, as
well as capacity rights IRWD acquired through the Whiting Annexation
Agreement. (To finance the construction of AMP parallel untreated reaches
which were incorporated into the Baker Pipeline, replacing original SAC
untreated reaches that were made a part of the AMP potable system, it was
provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and subsequently
MWDOC, would have ownership, and the participants would be sublessees.)
IRWD has 52.70 cfs in the first reach, 12.50 cfs in each of the second, third and
fourth reaches and 7.51 cfs in the fifth reach of the Baker Pipeline. Water is
subject to availability from MWD.

.NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - NATIVE

lrvine Lake (currently available)

(i)Permil For Diversion and Use of Water (Permit No. 19306) issued pursuant to
Application No. 27503; License For Diversion and Use of Water (License 2347)
resulting from Application No. 4302 and Permit No. 3238; License For Diversion
and Use of Water (License 2348) resulting from Application No. 9005 and Permit
No. 5202. The foregoing permit and licenses, jointly held by IRWD (as successor
to The lrvine Company (TlC) and Carpenter lrrigation District (ClD)) and Serrano
Water District (SWD), secure appropriative rights to the flows of Santiago Creek.
Under Licenses 2347 and 2348,IRWD and SWD have the right to diversion by
storage at Santiago Dam (lrvine Lake) and a submerged dam, of a total of
25,000 AFY. Under Permit No. 19306, IRWD and SWD have the right to
diversion by storage of an additional 3,000 AFY by flashboards at Santiago Dam
(lrvine Lake). (Rights under Permit No. 19306 may be junior to an OCWD permit
to divert up to 35,000 AFY of Santiago Creek flows to spreading pits downstream
of Santiago Dam.) The combined total of native water that may be diverted to
storage under these licenses and permit is 28,000 AFY. A 1996 amendment to
License Nos. 2347, 2348 and 2349 [replaced by Permit No. 19306 in 1984] limits
the withdrawal of water from the Lake to 15,483 AFY under the licenses. This
limitation specifically references the licenses and doesn't reference water stored
pursuant to other legal entitlements. The use and allocation of the native water is
governed by the agreements described in the next paragraph.

(ii) Agreement, dated February 6, 1928 (1928 Agreement"); Agreement, dated
May 15, 1956, as amended November 12, 1973 ('1956 Agreement'); Agreement,
dated as of December 21 ,1970 ("1970 Agreement"); Agreement Between trvine
Ranch Water District and The lrvine Company Relative to lrvine Lake and the
Acquisition of Water Rights ln and To Santiago Creek, As WellAs Additional
Storage Capacity in lrvine Lake, dated as of May 31, 1974 ("1974 Agreement").
The 1928 Agreement was entered into among SWD, CID and TlC, providing for
the use and allocation of native water in lrvine Lake. Through the 1970
Agreement and the 1974 Agreement, IRWD acquired the interests of CID and
TlC, leaving IRWD and SWD as the two co-owners. TIC retains certain reserved
rights. The 1928 Agreement divides the stored native water by a formula which
allocates to IRWD one-half of the first 1,000 AF, plus increments that generally

A-27
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas ouro r 1or r ,7



yield three-fourths of the amount over 1,000 AF.e The agreements also provide
for evaporation and spill losses and carryover water remaining in the Lake at the
annual allocation dates. Given the dependence of native water on rainfall, for
purposes of this assessment only a small portion of IRWD's share of the 28,OOO
AFY of native water rights (4,000 AFY in normal years and 1,000 AFY in single
and multiple-dry years) is shown in currently available supplies, based on
averaging of historical data. However, IRWD's ability to supplement lrvine Lake
storage with its imported untreated water supplies, described herein, offsets the
uncertainty associated with the native water supply.

¡NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER

lruine SubbasÍn / lruine Desalter (currently available)

(fl IRWD's entitlement to produce nonpotable water from the lrvine Subbasin is
included within the lrvine Subbasin Agreement. See discussion of the lrvine
Subbasin Agreement under Potable Supply - Groundwater; paragraph (ív),
above.

(ty' See discussion of the lrvine Desalter project under Potable Supply -
Groundwater, paragraph (v), above. The lrvine Desalter project will produce
nonpotable as well as potable water.

.IMPORTED SUPPLY - AD

As described above, the imported supply from MWD is contractually subject to
availability. To assist local water providers in assessing the adequacy of local
water supplies that are reliant in whole or in part on MWD's imported supply;
MWD has provided information concerning the availability of the supplies to its
entire service area. ln its most recently adopted RUWMP, MWD has extended
its planning timeframe out through 2035 to ensure that MWD's 2010 RUWMP
may be used as a source document for meeting requirements for sufficient
supplies. ln addition, the RUWMP includes'Justifications for Supply
Projections" (Appendix A-3) that details the planning, legal, financial, and
regulatory basis for including each source of supply in the plan. The RUWMP
summarizes MWD's planning initiatives over the past ten years, which includes
the lntegrated Resources Plan (lRP), the IRP update, the water surplus and
Drought Management Plan, Strategic Plan and Rate Structure. The reliability
analysis in MWD's IRP Update (October 2010) showed that MWD can maintain
reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in past dry periods
throughout the period 2015 through 2035. The RUWMP includes tables that
show the region can provide reliable supplies under both the single driest year
(1977) and multiple dry years (1990-92) through 2035. MWD has also identified
buffer supplies, including additional State Water Project groundwater storage and
transfers that could serve to supply the additional water needed.

e The 1956 Agreement provides for facilities to deliver MWD imported water into the Lake, and grants storage
capacity for the imported water. By succession, IRWD owns 9,000 AFY of this 12,000 AFY imported water storage
capacity. This storage capacity does not affect availability of the imported supply, which can be either stored or
delivered for direct use by customers.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning

A.28



It is anticipated that MWD will revise its regional supply availability analysis
periodically to supplement its RUWMP in years when the RUWMP is not being
updated.

IRWD is permitted by the statute to rely upon the water supply information
provided by the wholesaler concerning a wholesale water supply source, for use
in preparing its UWMPs. ln turn, the statute provides for the use of UWMP
information to support water supply assessments and verifications. ln
accordance with these provisions, IRWD is entitled to rely upon the conclusions
of the MWD RUWMP. As referenced above under Summary of Results of
Demand-Supply Comparisons - Recent Actions on Delta Pumping, MWD has
provided additional information on its imported water supply.

MWD's reserve supplies, together with the fact that IRWD relies on MWD
supplies as supplemental supplies that need not be used to the extent IRWD
operates currently available and under-development local supplies, build a
margin of safety into IRWD's supply availability.

(2) Adopted capital outlay program to finance delivery of the water supplies.

All necessary delivery facilities currently exist for the use of the currently
available and under-developmenf supplies assessed herein, with the exception of
future groundwater wells, MWRP expansion and IRWD sub-regional and
developer-dedicated conveyance facilities necessary to complete the local
distribution systems for the Project. IRWD's turnout at each MWD connection
and IRWD's regional delivery facilities are sufficiently sized to deliver all of the
supply to the sub-regional and local distribution systems.

With respect to future groundwater wells (PR Nos. 10285, 15423, 15427, 15428,
15051 and 15052) and the MWRP Phase 2 expansion (PR. Nos. 20214 and
30214),lRWD adopted its fiscal year 2010/1 1 capital budget on June 14,2010
(Resolution No. 2010-16), budgeting portions of the funds for such projects. (A
copy is available from IRWD on request.) For these facilities, as well as unbuilt
IRWD sub-regional conveyance facilities, the sources of funding are previously
authorized general obligation bonds, revenue-supported certificates of
participation and/or capitalfunds held by IRWD lmprovement Districts. IRWD
has maintained a successful program for the issuance of general obligation
bonds and certificates of participation on favorable borrowing terms, and IRWD
has received AAA public bond ratings. IRWD has approximately $673 million
(water) and $867 million (wastewater) of unissued, voter-approved bond
authorization. Certificates of participation do not require voter approval.
Proceeds of bonds and available capitalfunds are expected to be sufficient to
fund all IRWD facilities for delivery of the supplies under development. Tract-
level conveyance facilities are required to be donated to IRWD by the Applicant
or its successor(s) at time of development.

See also MWD's RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with
respect to capital outlay programs related to MWD's supplies.

A-29
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas UU/bl (b/t t )



(3) Federal, state and local permits for construction of delivery infrastructure.

Most IRWD delivery facilities are constructed in public right-of-way or future right-
of-way. State statute confers on IRWD the right to construct works along, under
or across any stream of water, watercourse, street, avenue, highway, railway,
canal, ditch or flume (Water Code Section 35603). Although this right cannot be
denied, local agencies may require encroachment permits when work is to be
pedormed within a street. lf easements are necessary for delivery infrastructure,
IRWD requires the developer to provide them. The crossing of watercourses or
areas with protected species requires federal and/or state permits as applicable.

See also MWD's RUWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with
respect to permits related to MWD's supplies.

(4) Regulatory approvals for conveyance or delivery of the supplies.

See response to preceding item (3). ln addition, reclamation plant expansion will
require approval of amendments to IRWD's permits issued by the Regional
Water Quality Control Board.

See also MWD'I RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with
respect to regulatory approvals related to MWD's supplies.

3. Other users and contractholders (identified supply not prev¡ously used).

For each of the water supply sources identified by IRWD, if no water has been received
from that source(s), IRWD is required to identify other public water systems or water
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water supply
entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, that source(s):

Water has been received from all listed sources. A small quantity of Subbasin
water is used by Woodbridge Village Association for the purpose of supplying its
North and South Lakes. There are no other public water systems or water
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water
supply entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, the lrvine
Subbasin.

A-30
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 1)



4. lnformation concerning groundwater included in the supply identified for
the Project:

(a) Relevant information in the Urban Water Management plan (UWMp):

See lrvine Ranch Water District 2005 UWMp, section lll-3.

(b) Description of the qroundwater basin(s) from which the Project will be supplied:

The orange county Groundwater Basin ("Basin") is described at pages 3-1
through 3-14 of the OCWD Master Plan Report, dated April, 1999 ('MPR") and in
the more recent Groundwater Management Plan ('GMP') at pages 2-1 through
6-3310. The rights of the producers w¡tn¡n the Basìn vis a vis'oné another have
not been adjudicated. The Basin is managed by the orange county water
District (OCWD) for the benefit of municipal, agricultural and private groundwater
producers. OCWD is responsible for the protection of water rights to the Santa
Ana River in Orange County as well as the management and replenishment of
the Basin. Current production from the Basin is approximately 366,000 AFY.

The Department of Water Resources has not identified the Basin as overdrafted
in its most current bulletin that characterizes the condition of the Basin, Bulletin
118 (2003). The efforts being undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long-term
overdraft in the Basin are described in the OCWD MPR, including in particular,
chapters 4, 5, 6, 14 and 15 of the MPR. ln addition to orange county water
District (OCWD) reports listed in the Assessment Reference List, OCWD has
also prepared a Long Term Facilities Plan (.LTFP') which provides updated
information and was received by the ocwD Board in July 2009. The LTFp
Chapter 3 describes the efforts being undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long-
term overdraft in the Basin.

Although the water supply assessment statute (Water Code Section 10910(f))
refers to elimination of "long-term overdraft," overdraft includes conditions which
may be managed for optimum basin storage, rather than eliminated. OCWD's
Act defines annual groundwater overdraft to be the quantity by which production
exceeds the natural replenishment of the Basin. Accumulated overdraft is
defined in the OCWD Act to be the quantity of water needed in the groundwater
basin forebay to prevent landward movement of seawater into the fresh
groundwater body. However, seawater intrusion controlfacilities have been
constructed by OCWD since the Act was written, and have been effective in
preventing landward movement of seawater. These facilities allow greater
utilization of the storage capacity of the Basin.

OCWD has invested over $250 million in seawater intrusion control (injection
barriers), recharge facilities, laboratories, and Basin monitoring to effectively
manage the Basin. Consequently, although the Basin is defined to be in an
"overdraft" condition, it is actually managed to allow utilization of up to 5O0,OOO
acre-feet of storage capacity of the basin during dry periods, acting as an
underground reservoir and buffer against drought. OCWD has an optimal basin

to OCWD has also prepared a Long Term Facilities Plan which provides updated information which was received and
filed by its Board in July 2009.

A-31
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning I



management target of 100,000 acre-feet of accumulated overdraft provides
sufficient storage space to accommodate increased supplies from one wet year
while also provide enough water in storage to offset decreased supplies during a
two- to three year drought. lf the Basin is too full, artesian conditions can occur
along the coastal area, causing rising water and water logging, an adverse
condition. Since the formation of OCWD in 1933, OCWD has made substantial
investment in facilities, Basin management and water rights protection, resulting
in the elimination and prevention of adverse long-term "mining" overdraft
conditions. OCWD continues to develop new replenishment supplies, recharge
capacity and basin protection measures to meet projected production from the
basin during normal rainfall and drought periods. (Source: 2008-2009
Engineer's Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin
Utilization in the Orange County Water District; OCWD MPR, supra.)

OCWD's efforts include ongoing replenishment programs and planned capital
improvements. lt should be noted under OCWD's management of overdraft to
maximize its use for annual production and recharge operations, overdraft varies
over time as the Basin is managed to keep it in balance over the long term. The
Basin is not operated on an annual safe-yield basis. (OCWD MPR, section 3.2
and LTFP, section 6)

(c) Description and analvsis of the amount and location of qroundwater pumped by
IRWD from the Basin for the past five vears:

The following table shows the amounts pumped, by groundwater source:

(ln AFY)

(d) Description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater projected to be
pumped by IRWD from the Basin:

tl The water produced from IRWD's Los Alisos wells is not included in this assessment. IRWD is presently
evaluating the future use of these wells.

N32

Year (ending 6/30)
DRWF/DATS/

OPA
lrvine Subbasin (IRWD) lrvine Subbasin (TlC) LAWDIl

2010 37,151 8,695 0 3

2009 38,140 7,614 0 0

2008 36,741 4,539 0 16

2007 37,864 5,407 0 6

2006 37,046 2,825 0 268

2005 36,316 2,285 628 357

2004 30,265 1,938 3,079 101

2003 24,040 2,132 4,234 598
2002 25,855 2,533 5,075 744

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning A, -eo ovrc I (b/I 1)



IRWD has a developed groundwater supply of 35,200 AFY from its Dyer Road
Wellfield (including the Deep Aquifer Treatment System), in the main portion of
the Basin.

Although TIC's historical production from the Subbasin declined as its use of the
Subbasin for agriculturalwater diminished, OCWD's and other historical
production records for the Subbasin show that production has been as high as
13,000 AFY. Plans are also underway to expand IRWD's main Orange County
Groundwater Basin supply (characterized as under-development supplies
herein). (See Section 2 (a) (1) herein). IRWD anticipates the development of
additional production facilities within both the main Basin and the lrvine
Subbasin. However, such additionalfacilities have not been included or relied
upon in this assessment. Additional groundwater development will provide an
additional margin of safety as well as reduce future water supply costs to IRWD.

The following table summarizes future IRWD groundwater production from currently available
and under-development supplies.

(ln AFY)

Year (ending 6/30) DRWF'2 Future GW13 IDP eor"¡r"t IDP 6onporaote¡

2015 37,900 15,600 5,640 3,898

2020 37,900 22,100 5,640 3,898

2025 37,900 32,600 5,640 3,899

2031 37,900 32,600 5,640 3,898

(e) lf not included in the UWMP, analysis of the sufficiency of groundwater projected to
be pumped by IRWD from the Basin to meet to meet the projected water demand of the
Project:

See responses to  (b) and a(Q.

The OCWD MPR and LTFP examined future Basin conditions and capabilities,
water supply and demand, and identified projects to meet increased
replenishment needs of the basin. With the implementation of OCWD's preferred
projects, the Basin yield in the year 2025 would be up to 500,000 AF. The
amount that can be produced will be a function of which projects will be
implemented by OCWD and how much increased recharge capacity is created
by those projects, total demands by all producers, and the resulting Basin
Production Percentage ('BPP") that OCWD sets based on these factors.la

t2 See Potable Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (iii), above. DRWF non-colored production above 28,000
AFY and colored water production above 8,000 AFY are subject to contractually-imposed assessments. ln addition,
seasonal production amounts apply. This also includes 1,000 AFY for the OPA well.

13 Under development.

14 OCWD has adopted a basin production percentage oi 
^to/' 

4^- ^^ ' 1-1 1. ln prior years OCWD has

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning r
A.33



Sufficient replenishment supplies are projected by the OCWD MPR to be
available to OCWD to meet the increasing demand on the Basin. These supplies
include capture of increasing Santa Ana River flows, purchases of replenishment
water from MWD, and development of new local supplies. OCWD is moving
forward with a number of replenishment supply projects, including the
Groundwater Replenishment System project ('GWRS"). The OCWD MPR
indicates that the GWRS will produce over 100,000 afy of new replenishment
supply from recycled water.

Production of groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages
on a short-term basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or
emergencies. Additional groundwater production is anticipated by OCWD in the
Basin in dry years, as producers reduce their use of imported supplies, and the
Basin is "mined" in anticipation of the eventual availability of replenishment water.
(OCWD MPR, section 14.6.)

See also, Figures 1-8. IRWD assesses sufficiency of supplies on an aggregated
basis, as neither groundwater nor other supply sources are allocated to particular
projects or customers. Under the lrvine Subbasin Agreement, IRWD is
contractually obligated to attribute the Subbasin supply only to TIC development
projects for assessment purposes; however, the agreement does not allocate or
assign rights in the Subbasin supply to any project.

5. X This Water Supply Assessment ¡s being completed for a project
included in a prior water supply assessment. Date of prior assessment: January
27,2OO3. Gheck all of the following that apply:

I Changes in the Project have substantially increased water demand.

! Changes in circumstances or conditions have substantially affected IRWD's
ability to provide a sufficient water supply for the Project.

! Significant new information has become available which was not known and
could not have been known at the date of the prior Water Supply Assessment.

6. References

Water Resources Master Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, March, 2002 (supplemented
January, 2004)

2005 Urban Water Management Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, November, 2005

lntegrated Water Resources Plan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
July,2OO4

maintained a basin production percentage that is higher than the current percentage, and IRWD anticipates that such
reductions may occur from time to time as a temporary measure employed by OCWD to encourage lower pumping
levels as OCWD implements other measures to reduce the current accumulated overdraft in the Basin. Any such
reductions are not expected to affect any of IRWD's currently available groundwater supplies listed in this
assessment, which are subject to a contractually-set equivalent basin production percentage as described, or are
exempt from the basin production percentage.

A-34
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning ,



Proposed Framework for Metropolitan Water District's Delta Action Plan, Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California, May 8,2007

Board lnformation Report, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October 9,2007

2007 IRP Implementation Report, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October,
2007

Master Plan Report, Orange County Water District, April, 1999

Groundwater Management Plan, Orange County Water District, March, 2004

Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan, Orange County Water District, January 2006

2008-2009 Engineer's Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization in
the Orange County Water District, Orange County Water District

Progress on lncorporating Climate Change into Management of California's Water Resources,
California Department of Water Resources, July 2006

Section 15 of the Rules and Regulations - Water Conseruation and Water Supply Shoftage
Program,lrvine Ranch Water District, February 2009

Water Shortage Contingency Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, February 2009

2010 lntegrated Resources Plan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
October 2010

Regional Urban Water Management Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
November 2010

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning I

A-35



Exhibit A

Depiction of Project Area

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning y'

A-36



Vicinity Map

\,
#""

-Å'"

A-37



Exhibit B

Uses lncluded in Project

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar(

A-38



February 18,2011

lrvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
P.O. Box 57000
lrvine, CA 92619-7000

Re: Request for Water Supply Availability Assessment (Water Code $10910 ef seq.)

The City of lrvine hereby requests an assessment of water supply availability for the below-described
project. The City has determined that the project is a "project" as defined in Water Code $10912, and has
determined that a supplemental environmental impact report is required for the project.

Proposed Project lnformation

Project Title: Heritaqe Fields Planning Areas 30 & 51, inclusion of Densitv Bonus residential units oranted
pursuant to state law, Section 2-3, and Resolution 08-2926

Location of project: Former MCAS El Toro Base. Planning Areas 30 and 51. The boundaries of Planninq Area 5'l
qenerallv include the Eastern Transportation Corridor to the west, the Foothill Transportation Corridor to the east,
the Southern California Reqiona! RailAuthoritv (SCRRA) rail lines to the south, and lrvine Boulevard and the
storm channel near Alton Parkway to the north. Planning Area 51 abuts Planninq Areas 30 and 32 to the south,
lrvine Spectrum 2 - Planning Area 35 to the east, and Plannino Areg-s 9 and 40 to the west, andflanninq Area 6
to the north. The boundaries of Plannino Area 30 qenerallv include lnterstate 5 (Santa Ana Freewav) to the
south, the SCRRA rail lines to the north, and the lrvine Spectrum to the east and west {lrvine Spectrum 2-
Plannino Area 35 and lrvine Spectrum 3 - Planninq Area 32). See attached Vicinitv Map

tr Previous Water Supply Assessment including this project was prepared on: 1127103 . This
application requests a new Water Supply Assessment, due to the following (check all that apply):

x Changes in the project have substantially increased water demand
tr Changes in circumstances or conditions have substantially affected IRWD's ability to provide a sufficient

water supply for the project
¡ Significant new information has become available which was not known and could not have been known

at the date of the prior Water Supply Assessment
(Enclose maps and exhibits of the project)

Type of Development:
x Resldenfial: No. of dwelling units: .3,625 (ín Qlior assessment), 1,269 new (total 4,894)

nShoppingcenterorbuslness:No.ofemployeeS-Sq.ft'offloorspace
n CommercialorT¡ce: No. of employees
tr Hotelor motel: No. of rooms

Sq. ft. of floor space

n lndustrial, manufacturing, processrng or industrial park: No. of employees
No. of acres Sq. ft. of floor space

f Mixed use (check and complete all above that apply)
x Other, Non-Residgntial existinq entitlement per orioinal Water Suoply Assessment with addition of (1) 1,000
student school.

Total acreage of project per original Water Supply Assessmeni

Acreage devoted to landscape: (per original Water Supply Assessment)
Greenbelt golf course parks
Agriculture other landscaped areas,

Number of schools addition of (1) 1 ,000 student school Number of public facilities

A-39



Other factors or uses that would affect the quantity of water needed, such as peak flow requirements or potential
uses to be added to the project to reduce or mitigate environmental impacts:

Landscaped areas will be irriqated via reclaimed water

What is the current land use of the area subject to a land use change under the project?
Per oriqinal Water Supplv Assessmeni

ls the project included in the existing General Plan? Yes lf no, describe the existing General Plan
Designation

The City acknowledges that IRWD's assessment will be based on the information hereby provided to IRWD
concerning the project. lf it is necessary for corrected or additional information to be submitted to enable IRWD to
complete the assessment, the request will be considered incomplete until IRWD's receipt of the corrected or
additional information. lf the project, circumstances or conditions change or new information becomes available
after the issuance of a Water Supply Assessment, the Water Supply Assessment may no longer be valid. The
City will request a new Water Supply Assessment if it determines that one is required.

The City acknowledges that the Water Supply Assessment shall not constitute a "will-serve" or in any way entitle
the project applicant to service or to any right, priority or allocation in any supply, capacity or facility, and that the
issuance of the Water Supply Assessment shall not affect IRWD's oblígation to provide service to its existing
customers or any potential future customers including the project applicant. ln order to receive service, the
project applicant shall be required to file a completed Application(s) for Service and Agreement with the lrvine
Ranch Water District on IRWD's forms, together with all fees and charges, plans and specifications, bonds and
conveyance of necessary easements, and meet all other requirement as specified therein

CITY OF ORANGE

By:

REQUEST RECEIVED:

{c9JUrv
I L.--''...-'---,
t ^--------*æ

1.t,
Date: Jn4* 2V, ,)a tt

REQUEST COMPLETE:

oate: Vh^â¿1,14' 4, èü / /
,r' {-( l,(.i¡ u}d¿'¿'--

lrvine Ranch Water District

e Ranch Water District

A-40



Exhibit'oB'o

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
VERIFICATION OF SUFFICIENT WATER SUPPLY

Government Code 566473.7

To: (Lead Agency)
City of lrvine
P.O. Box 19575
lruine. CA 92623-9575

(Applicant)
Heritaoe Fields ElToro. LLC
25 Enterprise. Suite 400
Aliso Vieio. CA 92656

Project Information

Project Title: Heritaqe Fields Vesting Tentative Tract Maps 17283, 17364. 17366. 17368. and
17202 in Planninq Area 51 (see Exhibit A)

flTentative Map Application No. 00516277-PTT. 00516246-PTT. 00516252-PTT. 00516269-PTT.
00516254-PTT lVerification requested prior to tentative map application

Number of residential units in Project: 4.894
Non-residential uses in Project (type, no. of employees, sq. ft. of floor space, acreage): (see Exhibit B)
Acreage to be devoted to landscape (excluding individual residence yards): (see Exhibit B)

n The projected water demand for the Project was included in IRWD's most recently adopted urban
water management plan.

X A water supply assessment that included the Project was adopted by IRWD on
2011. A copy is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (see

Exhibit C).

Verification of Availability of Sufficient Water Supply

2011, the Board of Directors of the lrvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) approved the
within Verification and made the following determination regarding the above-described Project:

! A sufficient water supply is available for the Project.
The total water supplies available to IRWD during normal, single-dry and multiple-dry
years within a20-year projection will meet the projected water demand of the Project in
addition to the demand of existing and other planned future uses, including, but not
limited to, agricultural and manufacturing uses.

n A sufficient water supply is not available for the Project.

The foregoing determination is based on the following Water Supply Verification lnformation and
supporting information in the records of IRWD.

Signature

Water Supply Verificat¡on - Heritage Fields Planning Areâ 51 l5l1 1l

B-1

On

Date Title



WATER SUPPLY VERIFICATION INFORMATION

Purpose of Verif ication

lrvine Ranch Water District ("lRWD") is the public water system that will supply water
service (both potable and nonpotable) to the project identified on the cover page of this
verification (the "Project'). As a public water system, IRWD is required by Section 66473.7oÍ
the Government Code (the "Verification LaW') to provide the City with a verification of the
availability of a sufficient water supply for non-exempt subdivisions of more than 500 residential
units in conjunction with (or prior to) the City's approval of a tentative map. The City has found
the Project to include a subdivision that is subject to verification and not exempt under the
Verification Law.

The Verification Law provides that a verification shall be supported by substantial
evidence, which may include, but is not limited to, any of the following (i) IRWD's most recently
adopted urban water management plan; (ii) a water supply assessment previously adopted for
the project under Water Code 10910, et seq.; or (iii) other analytical information substantially
similar to the assessment of service reliability required by Water Code Section 10635 to be
included in the urban water management plan. The Verification Law also specifies the elements
to be contained in a verification with respect to (i) supplies relied upon that are not currently
available; (ii) reasonably foreseeable impacts of the subdivision on the availability of water
resources for agricultural and industrial uses within IRWD's service area that are not currently
receiving water; and (iii) rights to extract additional groundwater needed to supply the
subdivision.

A verification does not entitle the Project to service or to any right, priority or allocation in
any supply, capacity or facility, or affect IRWD's obligation to provide service to its existing
customers or any potential future customers. ln order to receive service, the Project applicant is
required to file a completed Application(s) for Service and Agreement with the lrvine Ranch
Water District on IRWD's forms, together with all fees and charges, plans and specifications,
bonds and conveyance of necessary easements, and meet all other requirement as specified
therein.

Methodoloqy of Verification for Proiect With Prior Water Supplv Assessment

As referenced on the cover page of this verification (the "Verification"), the Project was
included within an assessment of water supply approved by IRWD. The Assessment contained
IRWD's determination that a sufficient water supply is available for the Project. As described in
the Assessment, IRWD does not allocate particular supplies to any project, but identifies total
supplies for its service area. However, upon approval of each assessment containing a
determination of a sufficient supply, IRWD attributes the demands identified by that assessment
to IRWD's existing and committed demand. Thereafter, each verification approved by IRWD for
a subdivision covered by that assessment is based on the assessment, and reflects IRWD's
confirmation that the water demands of the subdivision, together with any other subdivisions or
developments that have previously received verifications, will-serves or other approval by IRWD
under the same assessment, are, in the aggregate, within the demand identified by that
assessment. In accordance with that procedure, this Verification is based on the Assessment.
The Assessment's determination of sufficiency extends through 2031, and is supplemented
herein to include the full 2}-year projection required in this Verification.

Water Supply Verif¡cat¡on - Heritage Fields Planning Area 51 (5/111

B-2



ln addition, this Verification includes the elements required by the Verification Law that
are not included within the required contents of assessments.

Supportino Documentation

As noted above, the principal supporting document for this Verification is the
Assessment. Other documentation supports the Assessment and this Verification: IRWD
prepares two planning documents to guide water supply decision-making. IRWD's principal
planning document is IRWD's'Water Resources Master Plan" ('WRMP"). The WRMP is a
comprehensive document compiling data and analyses that IRWD considers necessary for its
planning needs. IRWD also prepares an urban water Management plan ("uwMp"), a
document required by statute. The UWMP is based on the WRMP, but contains defined
elements as listed in the statute (Water Code Section 10631 , et seq.), and as a result, is more
limited than the WRMP in the treatment of supply and demand issues. (The UWMP is required
to be updated in years ending with 'Tive" and "zero," and IRWD's next update of that document
is anticipated in 2010.1)

ln addition to the Assessment, the most recent WRMP and the 2005 UWMP mentioned
above, other supporting documentation referenced herein is found in Section 5 of this
Verification. This includes the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California's Regional
Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP) detailing an evaluation by Metropolitan Water District
of Southern California (MWD), the wholesaler of IRWD's imported water supplies, of the
reliability of MWD's supplies.

The Verification Law requires written proof of entitlement for "not currently available"
(referred to herein as "under development") supplies. The Assessment includes such
information for both currently available and under development supplies. Due to the number of
contracts, statutes and other documents comprising IRWD's written proof of entitlement to its
water supplies, in lieu of attachment of such items, they are identified by title and summarized in
Section 2 of the Assessment. Copies of the summarized items have been provided to the City
and can be obtained from IRWD.

Sufficiencv Calculation Methodoloqy

The methodology for IRWD's comparison of its demands and supplies is set forth in the
Assessment, in the section entitled "Assessment Methodology" and subsections thereof entiiled
'\¡rater use factors; dry-year increases;" "planning horizon;" "assessment of demands;"
"assessment of supplies;" and "comparison of demand and supply."

1 Extended to July 1,2011 (Water Code Section 10608.20)

Water Supply Verification - Heritage Fields Planning Area 5r /Ê/i r\

B-3



Detailed Verification

1. Determination of sufficiency of water supply

(a) Supply and demand comparison

See the Assessment, Section 1, incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Factors considered in determining the sufficiency of the water supply:

(i) The availability of water supplies over a historical record of at least 20 years.

See the Assessment, Section 1, incorporated herein by reference.

(ii) The applicability of a water shortage contingency analysis prepared pursuant
to Water Code Section 10632 that includes actions to be undertaken by IRWD in
response to water supply shortages.

The supply and demand comparisons incorporated from the Assessment into this
Verification (see 1(a)) do not reflect the implementation of water shortage emergency measures.
IRWD's water shortage contingency plan (see UWMP, Section Vlll-1) and IRWD's Rules and
Regulations, Section 15, provide for four levels of water shortage emergency that may be
declared by IRWD, with voluntary or mandatory measures that could be invoked in the
respective levels. However, in order to be conservative, IRWD has not reduced its single-dry or
multiple-dry year demand projections or increased its single-dry or multiple-dry year supply
projections in the Assessment to account for any water savings that could be achieved by these
measures.

(iii) Reduction by IRWD in water supply allocated to a specific water use sector,
pursuant to a resolution, ordinance or contract uses.

The supply and demand comparisons incorporated from the Assessment into this
Verification (see 1(a)) do not reflect any allocated reductions by IRWD. As noted under the
preceding item (ii), IRWD's water shortage contingency plan and Rules and Regulations provide
for voluntary and mandatory water conservation measures that could be invoked in declared
water shodage emergencies. These include reductions to certain water uses. However, in
order to be conservative, IRWD has not reduced its single-dry or multiple-dry year demand
projections or increased its single-dry or multiple-dry year supply projections in the Assessment
to account for water savings that could be achieved by any allocated reductions.

With respect to items (ii) and (iii) above, it is noted that MWD has in effect a
management plan for dealing with periodic surplus and shortage conditions, known as
Metropolitan Report No. 1150, Water Surplus and Drought Management PIan (RUWMP, ll-15).
MWD's demand projections account for the effects of long-term conservation best management
practices.

Water Supply Verification - Her¡tage Fields Planning Area 51 l5l1 1)

B-4



(iv) The amount of water that IRWD can reasonably rely on receiving from other
water supply projects, such as conjunctive use, reclaimed water, water conservation, and
water transfer, including programs identified under federal, state and local water
initiatives such as CALFED and Colorado River tentative agreements, based on the
inclusion of information with respect to such supplies in section 2, below.

Local. IRWD directly relies (for a portion of its full build-out annual demand in single and
multiple dry-year projections) on the following under development supplies (see 1(a), above):
the lrvine Wells (see the Assessment, Section 2(bXlXvi) - "POTABLE SUPPLY -
GROUNDWATER"). In addition to Orange County Water District (OCWD) reports listed in the
Assessment Reference List, OCWD has also prepared a Long Term Facilities Plan ('LTFP')
which provides updated information and is expected to be considered for adoption in 2008. The
LTFP Chapters 3, 5 and 6 describe the efforts being undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long-
term overdraft in the Basin. OCWD has an optimal basin management target of 100,000 acre-
feet of accumulated overdraft which provides sufficient storage space to accommodate
increased supplies from one wet year while also provides enough water in storage to offset
decreased supplies during a two- to three year drought. (Source: 2008-09 Engineer's Report
on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization in the Orange County Water
District).

With the implementation of OCWD's preferred projects, the Basin yield in the year 2030
would be up to 500,000 AF. The amount that can be produced will be a function of which
projects will be implemented by OCWD and how much increased recharge capacity is created
by those projects, total demands by all producers, and the resulting Basin Production
Percentage ("BPP") that OCWD sets based on these factors.

IRWD's own reclaimed water expansion program is also shown as an under
development supply. IRWD also has a currently available reclaimed water supply from its own
existing reclamation program. The reclaimed water supplies are discussed in Section 2 below
(see the Assessment, Section 1 - Figures 5,6,7 and I (supplies denominated "MWRP" and
"LAWRP"), Section 2(a), and Section 2(bX1) - "NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - RECLAIMED"),
IRWD has prepared a Final Environmental lmpact Report for the Michelson Water Reclamation
Plant Phase 2 and 3 Capacity Expansion Project (February, 2006). With this expansion, IRWD
plans to increase its capacity on the existing MWRP site to produce sufficient reclaimed water to
meet the projected demand in the year 2031. (lnitial upgrades that are within existing permit
authorizations and CEQA compliance are completed.) Additional reclamation capacity will
augment local nonpotable supplies and improve reliability.

As noted in the Assessment, IRWD's demand projections reflect the effect of IRWD's
water conservation pricing and other conservation practices; in particular, IRWD's water use
factors used to derive its demand projections are based on average water use and incorporate
the effect of IRWD's tiered-rate conservation pricing and its other long-term water conservation
programs. As discussed above, IRWD's supply and demand projections do not take into
account water savings that could be achieved by water shortage emergency measures.

lmported. MWD, the supplier of IRWD's imported supplies, relies upon several of the
listed projects and programs. MWD supports and provides financial incentives to water
reclamation, groundwater recovery, water conseruation, ocean desalination and other local
resource development programs. MWD calculates its demand forecast by first estimating total
retail demand for the region and then factoring in impacts of conservation. Next, it derives
projections of local supplies using data on current and expected local supply programs and

Water Supply Verification - Heritage Fields Planning Area 51 ,''' "

B-5



lntegrated Resource Planning (lRP) Local Resource Program Target. The difference between
the resulting local demands is the expected regional demand on MWD. These estimates of
demands on MWD were developed for a single dry year, multiple dry years and average years.
(2010 RUWMP,2-15)

MWD also relies upon the implementation of the CALFED Bay-Delta Program, as an
under development supply, to attain an increase in its existing Bay-Delta deliveries. Other
under development programs relied upon by MWD are: additional transfers and storage
agreements (San Bernardino Valley MunicipalWater District Conjunctive-use Program,
Westside Valley Transfers, Eastside Valley Transfers); llD/MWD Conservation Program; lnterim
Surplus Guidelines; San Diego County Water Authority/lmperial lrrigation District Transfer; Palo
Verde lrrigation District Land Management Program; and Off-Aqueduct StorageÆransfer
Programs. (2010 BUWMP, Sections 3.1 , 3.2, and 3.3)

ln addition to MWD's existing regional supply assessments, the water supply verification
has considered MWD information concerning recent events. See the above "Recent Actions on
Delta Pumping."

2. Required information concernlng under-developmenfsupplies

(a) Written contracts or other proof of valid rights to the identified supplies

See the Assessment, Section 2(b)(1), incorporated herein by reference. See also
MWD's 2010 RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with respect to written
contracts and other proof related to MWD's supplies.

(b) Adopted capital outlay program to finance delivery of the supplies

See the Assessment, Section 2(b)(2), incorporated herein by reference. With respect to
future groundwater wells (PR Nos. 10285, 15423,15427,15428,15051 and 15052) and the
MWRP Phase 2 expansion (PR. Nos. 20214 and 30214),|RWD adopted its fiscal year 2010-11
capital budget on June 14,2010 (Resolution No. 2010-16), budgeting portions of the funds for
such projects. See also MWD's 2010 RUWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply
Projections with respect to capital outlay programs related to MWD's supplies.

(c) Federal, state and local permits to construct of delivery infrastructure

See the Assessment, Section 2(bX3), incorporated herein by reference. See also
MWD's 2O1O RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with respect to
permits related to MWD's supplies.

(d) Regulatory approvals for conveyance or delivery of the supplies

See the Assessment, Section 2(b)(4), incorporated herein by reference. ln addition,
reclamation plant expansion will require approval of amendments to IRWD's permits issued by
the Regional Water Quality Control Board. See also MWD's 2O1O RUWMP, Appendix 4.3
Justifications for Supply Projections with respect to regulatory approvals related to MWD's
supplies.

Water Supply Verification - Heritage Fields Planning Area 51 l5l1 1)

B-6



3. Foreseeable impacts of the Project on the availability of water for
agricultural and industrial uses in IRWD's service area not currently receiving
water

Based on city planning and other information known to IRWD, there are no agricultural
or industrial uses in IRWD's service area that are not within either existing and committed
demand or future demand, both of which are included within the supply and demand
comparison and determination of sufficiency (see 1(a)).

4. lnformation concerning the right to extract additional groundwater included
in the supply identified for the Project:

Where the water supply for the Project includes groundwater, the verification is required
to include an evaluation of the extent to which IRWD or the landowner has the right to extract
the additional groundwater needed to supply the Project. See the Assessment, Section 2(bX1),
"POTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER' and "NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER,"
and Section 4, incorporated herein by reference.

5. References

Water Resources Master Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, March, 2002 (supplemented
January, 2004)

2005 Urban Water Management Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, November, 2005

The Regional Urban Water Management PIan for the Metropolitan Water District of Southern
Californ ia, November, 2005

lntegrated Water Resources Plan Updafe, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
July,2OO4

Proposed Framework for Metropolitan Water District's Delta Action Plan, Melropolitan Water
District of Southern California, May 8, 2007

Board lnformation Repoft, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October 9,2007

2007 IRP lmplementation Report, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October,
2007

Master PIan RepoÍ, Orange County Water District, April, 1999

Groundwater Management Plan, Orange County Water District, March, 2004

Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan, Orange County Water District, January 2006

2008-2009 Engineer's Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization in
the Orange County Water District, Orange County Water District

Water Supply Verification - Heritage Fields Planning Areo Ãr 1Ãlr 1ì

B-7



Progress on lncorporating Climate Change into Management of California's Water Resources,
California Department of Water Resources, July 2006

Section 15 of the Rules and Regulations - Water Conseruation and Water Supply Shortage
Program,lrvine Ranch Water District, February 2009

Water Shortage Contingency Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, February 2009

2010 lntegrated Resources PIan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
October 2010

2010 Regional Urban Water Management Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California, November 201 0

Water Supply Verificat¡on - Heritage F¡elds Planning Areâ t4 tÊt11\

B-8



Exhibit A

Depiction of Project Area

Water Supply Verification - Her¡tage Fields Planning Area 5r /Ã/r r \

B-9



c)
aq
l..JÈ
!¡--
f{-
tr,lì

LfGfND;

=o>-e
(J
c¡z{t/t

Location Map

PROPOSE0 yËSrll,tc rF$råilra rFÂcr #ÁPs

B-10



Exhibit B

Non-residential Uses lncluded in Project

B-1 1
Water Supply Verification - Heritage Fields Planning Area I



February 18,2011

lrvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
P.O. Box 57000
lrvine, CA 92619-2000

Re: Request for Verification of Sufficient Water Suppties (Government Code 566473.7(bX1)

The City of lrvine/County oT orange hereby requests verification of the availability of a sufficient watersupply for the below-described project. unoer'Government Code g66ai¡.if ¡liií, written verification ofthe availability of a sufficient water-supqly i: required in conjunctioñ with or òr¡är iä the approvat of anytentative map that includes a residential ðubdivision of morå than 500 owàlrinluÀ¡ts, subject to certainexemptions.

The City has determined that the subject project (1) includes a subdivision meeting the criteria requiringverification of availability of sufficient watdr sipptù ánu fãiãà"r not fa¡ within one öf the statutory
exemPtions for previously developed urban siiesis¡tes àurrounded by urban ,i",or tow-¡ncomeîousing

Proposed Project Information

Project Title:

Planning Area(s): 51. See attached Vícinitv Map
(Enclose a project map and exhibits¡-
was the project included as part of a previously- completed water supply Assessment (water code g1og10)? x
Yes tr no (3,625 units subjectto prior WSA 1,2-69 units are new)
lf yes, date and project tifle of water suppty Ássessment 1/27103 oranqe count

Assessment
lfno,statereasoaWaterSupplyAssessmentwascompletedpriorto

Location of project:

January 1,2002 [ other:

next project approval sought:_ )

("4 copy of the tentative map application including the proposed subdivision was sent to IRWD on:2lgl11
, (Government Code 566455.3))

Type oj development included in the project:
x Resrdential: No. of dwelling uniis: 3,625 fin prior assessment), 1.269 new (total 4.g94)

s-hopping center or busrness: No. of employees_ sq. ft. of froor space
Conmerciato¡Trce: No. of employees - s+ ttìt-rtoiù"""
Hotel or motel: No. of rooms
I nd ustri al, man ufactu ring, p rocessi ng

was a water supply Verification previously completed for the project? x yes tr no (3,625 unitò subject to priorverification, 1,269 units are new)
lf yes, indicate reason for reverification: E tract map expiration x new Water Supply Assessment required due toproject revisions, changed circumstances or new information

Tentative Y3gnpÜ.3tion No,*00516277-PTT,-00516246-prr, 00516252-prr, 00516269-prr,00516254-PTT_[ Tentative Tract No.* lZ
Verificatíonisbeingrequestedpriortoten@VernmentCode$66473'7(1)(lndicate

X

tr

tr
tr
tr
tr

B-12



No. of acres Sq. ft. of floor space
n Mixed use (check and complete atl above that apply)
x Other.775.000 souare feet gf lnstitutional (Edu), 48.700 square feet of Medical Science (R&D), 220,000
square [eet of Communitv Commercial (Retaill, 75,000 Office, 25,000 square feet of Pubh'c Facilttv. 11O00
square feet of Child Care and 1,000 student school.

Total acreage of project: 1.133

Acreage devoted to landscape: (per WTM Application)
Greenbelt_ golf course parks
Agriculture other landscaped areas

Other factors or uses that would affect the quantity of water needed, such as peak flow requirements:
Landscaped areas will be irriqated via reclaimed water

ls the project included in the existing General Plan? Yes lf no, describe the exlsting General
Plan Designation_

Ïhe City acknowledges that IRWÐ's verifrcation will be based on the information hereby provided to IRWD
concerning the project. lf it is necessary for corrected or additional information to be súbmitted to enable IRWD to
complete the verification, the request will be considered incomplete until IRWD's receipt of the corrected or
additional information. lf the project changes or the tentative map approval expires after the issuance of a Water
Supply Verification, the City will request a new Water Supply Verifícation if required. ln the event of changes in
the project, circumstances or conditions of the availability of new information, it will be necessary for the City to
request a new Water Supply Assessment prìor to completion of the new Water Supply Verification.

The City acknowledges that the Water Supply Verification shall not constitute a "will-serve" or in any way entitle
the project applicant to service or to any right, priority or allocation in any supply, capacity or facility, and that the
issuance of the Water Supply Verification shall not affect IRWD's obligation to provide service to itó existing
customers or any potential future customers including the project applicant. ln order to receive service, the
project applicant shall be required to file a completed Application(s) for Service and Agreement with the lrvine
Ranch Water District on IRWD's forms, together with all fees and charges, plans and épecifications, bonds and
conveyance of necessary easements, and meet all.otlref requirement as specified therein.

crrv'6r tRVu{E /couNry oF oRANcE

REQUEST RECEIVED:

REQUEST COMPLETE:

B-13



Exhibit C

Water Supply Assessment

Water Supply Verification - Heritage Fields Planning Area 5 l (5/1 1)

B-14



IRVINE RANCH WATER D¡STRICT
ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY

Water Code 510910 et seq.

To: (Lead Agency)

Citv of lrvine
P.O. Box 19575
lrvine. CA 92623-9575

(Applicant)
Heritaqe Fields ElToro. LLC
25 Enterprise. Suite 400
Aliso Vieio. CA 92656

Project lnformation
Project Title: Heritaqe Fields Planninq Areas 30 and 51 (Exhibit A)

nlndustrial,manufacturingorprocessing:No.ofemployees-No.ofacres
Sq. ft. of floor space

X Mixed use (check and complete all above that apply) (see Exhibit B)
n other

Assessment of Availability of Water Supply

on-,2011theBoardofDirectorsofthelrvineRanchWaterDistrict(lRWD)approvedthe
within assessment and made the following determination regarding the above-described Project:

X The projected water demand for the Project E was E was not included in IRWD's most
recently adopted urban water management plan.

n A sufficient water supply is available for the Project.
The total water supplies available to IRWD during normal, single-dry and multiple-dry
years within a2}-year projection will meet the projected water demand of the Project in
addition to the demand of existing and other planned future uses, including, but not
limited to, agricultural and manufacturing uses.

n A sufficienl water supply is not available for the Project. [Plan for acquiring and
developing sufficient supply attached. Water Code $ 10911 (a)l

The foregoing determination is based on the following Water Supply Assessment lnformation and
supporting information in the records of IRWD.

Signature

B-15

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage F¡elds Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 I )

Date Title



Water Supply Assessment lnformation

Purpose of Assessment

lrvine Ranch Water District ('IRWD') has been identified by the City as a public water
system that will supply water service (both potable and nonpotable) to the project identified on
the cover page of this assessment (the "Project"). As the public water system, IRWD is required
by Section 10910 et seq. of the Water Code to provide the City with an assessment of water
supply availability ("assessment") for defined types of projects. The Project has been found by
the City to be a project requiring an assessment. The City is required to include this
assessment in the environmental document for the Project, and, based on the record, make a
determination whether projected water supplies are sufficient for the Project and existing and
planned uses.

Water Code Section 10910 (the "Assessment LaW') contains the requirements for the
information to be set forth in the assessment.

Prior Water Supply Assessments

IRWD does not allocate particular supplies to any project, but identifies total supplies for
its service area. Because of IRWD's aggregation of demands and supplies, each assessment
completed by IRWD is expected to be generally similar to the most recent assessment, with
changes as needed to take into account changes, if any, in demands and supplies, and any
updated and corrected information obtained by IRWD. Previously assessed projects'water
demands will be included in the baseline. A newly assessed project's water demand will have
been included in previous water supply assessments for other projects (as part of IRWD's'Tull
build-out" demand) to the extent of any land use planning or other water demand information for
the project that was available to IRWD.

The Project's water demand was included (as part of IRWD's'Iull build-out'demand) in
previous water supply assessments performed by IRWD, based on land use planning
information then available to IRWD. ln this water supply assessment, the Project demand will
be revised in accordance with updated information provided by the applicant and included in tlre
'\ruith project" demand.

Supportinq Documentation

IRWD prepares two planning documents to guide water supply decision-making.
IRWD's principal planning document is IRWD's "Water Resources Master Plan" ('WRMP"). The
WRMP is a comprehensive document compiling data and analyses that IRWD considers
necessary for its planning needs. IRWD also prepares an Urban Water Management Plan
("UWMP"), a document required by statute. The UWMP is based on the WRMP, but contains
defined elements as listed in the statute (Water Code Section 10631 , et seq.), and as a result, is
more limited than the WRMP in the treatment of supply and demand issues. Therefore, IRWD
primarily relies on its most recent WRMP. (The UWMP is required to be updated in years
ending with 'Tive" and"zeto," and IRWD's next update of that document is anticipated in June
2O11.1)

ln addition to the WRMP and the 2005 UWMP mentioned above, other supporting
documentation referenced herein is found in Section 6 of this assessment.

1 Extended to July 1,2011 (Water Code Section 10608.20)

B-16
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Aret



Due to the number of contracts, statutes and other documents comprising IRWD's
written proof of entitlement to its water supplies, in lieu of attachment of such items, they are
identified by title and summarized in Section 2(b) of this assessment (written contracts/proof of
entitlement). Copies of the summarized items can be obtained from IRWD.

Assessment Methodoloqy

Water use factors; dry-year increases. IRWD employs water use factors to enable it
to assign water demands to the various land use types and aggregate the demands. The water
use factors are based on average water use and incorporate the effect of IRWD's tiered-rate
conservation pricing and its other water conservation programs. The factors are derived from
historical usage (billing data) and a detailed review of water use factors within the IRWD service
areas conducted as a part of the WRMP. Water demands also reflect normal hydrologic
conditions (precipitation). Lower levels of precipitation and higher temperatures will result in
higher water demands, due primarily to the need for additional water for irrigation. To reflect
this, base (normal) WRMP water demands have been increased 7o/oin the assessment during
both "single-dr/'and "multiple-dff'years. This is consistent with IRWD's 2005 UWMP and
historical regionaldemand variation as documented in the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California's ("MWD's") lntegrated Resources Plan (1996) (Volume 1, page 2-10).

Planning horizon. For consistency with IRWD's WRMP, the assessment reviews
demands and supplies through the year 2031, which is considered to represent build-out or
"ultimate development'.

Assessment oÍ demands. Water demands are reviewed in this assessment for three
development projections (to 2031 ):

o Existinq and committed demand (without the Project) ("baseline'). This provides a
baseline condition as of the date of this assessment, consisting of demand from existing
development, plus demand from development that has both approved zoning and (if
required by the Assessment Law) an adopted water supply assessment.

o Existinq and committed demand. plus the Proiect ('\Mith-proiect'). This projection adds
the Project water demands to the baseline demands.

. Full WRMP build-out ('Tull build-out"). ln addition to the Project, this projection adds
potential demands for all presently undeveloped areas of IRWD based on current
general plan information, modified by more specific information available to IRWD, as
more fully described in Chapter 2 of the WRMP.

Assessment of supplíes. For comparison with demands, water supplies are classified
as currently available or under development

.Currently available supplies include those that are presently operational, and those that
will be operationalwithin the next several years. Supplies expected to be operational in
the next several years are those having completed or substantially completed the
environmental and regulatory review process, as well as having necessary contracts (if
any) in place to move forward. These supplies are in various stages of planning, design,
or construction.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar

B-17



. ln general, supplies under developmenf may necessitate the preparation and
completion of environmental documents, regulatory approvals, and/or contracts prior to
full construction and implementation.

IRWD is also evaluating the development of additional supplies that are not included in either
currently available or under-developmentsupplies for purposes of this assessment. As outlined
in the WRMP, prudent water supply and financial planning dictates that development of supplies
be phased over time consistent with the growth in demand.

Water supplies available to IRWD include several sources: groundwater pumped from
the Orange County groundwater basin (including the lrvine Subbasin); captured local (native)
surface water; reclaimed wastewater, and supplemental imported water supplied by MWD
through the MunicipalWater District of Orange County ('MWDOC"). The supply-demand
comparisons in this assessment are broken down among the various sources, and are further
separated into potable and nonpotable water sources.

Comparison of demand and supply. The three demand projections noted above
(baseline, with-project and full build-out) are compared with supplies in the following ways:

. On a lolal annualquantity basis (stated in acre-feet per year (AFY)).

. On a peak-flow (maximum day) basis (stated in cubic feet per second (cfs)).

. Under three climate conditions: base (normal) conditions and single-dry and multiple-
dry year conditions. (Note: These conditions are compared for annualdemands and not
tor peak-flor¡¡demands. Peak-flow is a measure of a water delivery system's ability to
meet the highest day's demand of the fluctuating demands that will be experienced in a
year's time. Peak demands occur during the hot, dry season and as a result are not
appreciably changed by dry-year conditions; dry-year conditions do affect annual
demand by increasing the quantity of water needed to supplement normal wet-season
precipitation.)

Summarv of Results of Demand-Supply Comparisons

Listed below are Figures provided in this assessment, comparing projected potable and
nonpotable water supplies and demands under the three development projections:

Figure 1: Normal Year Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 2: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 3: Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 4: Maximum-Day Supply and Demand - Potable Water
Figure 5: Normal Year Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water
Figure 6: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water
Figure 7: Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water
Figure 8: Maximum-Day Supply and Demand - Nonpotable Water

It can be observed in the Figures that IRWD's supplies remain essentially constant
between normal, single-dry and multiple-dry years. This result is due to the fact that
groundwater and MWD imported water account for all of IRWD's potable supply, and reclaimed
water, groundwater and imported water comprise most of IRWD's nonpotable supply,
Groundwater production typically remains constant or increases in cycles of dry years, even if

B-18
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage F¡elds Planning



overdraft of the basin temporarily increases, as groundwater producers reduce their demand on
imported supplies to secure reliability. (See Section 4 herein.) As to imported water, MWD's
2010 Regional Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP) shows that MWD can maintain
reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in past dry periods through 2035,
including a repeat of the 1990-1992 multiple dry-year hydrology and the 1977 single dry-year
hydrology. (See Section 2(b) (1) "IMPORTED SUPPLY - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION," below,
for a summary of information provided by MWD.) Reclaimed water production also remains
constant, and is considered "drought-proof" as a result of the fact that sewage flows remain
virtually unaffected by dry years. Only a small portion of IRWD's nonpotable supply, native
water captured in lrvine Lake, is reduced in single-dry and multiple-dry years. The foregoing
factors also serve to explain why there is no difference in IRWD's supplies between single-dry
and multiple-dry years.

A review of the Figures indicates the following:

o Currently available supplies of potable water are adequate to meet projected annual
demands for both lhe baseline and with-projecf demand projections under the normal
and both dry-year conditions through the year 2015. (Figures 1, 2 and 3.)

¡ Meeting both single- and multiple-dry-year annual demands tor full build-outwill require
the completion of under-development supplies. (Figures 2 and 3.)

. Adequate currently available potable water supply capacity is available to meet peak-
flow (maximum day) demands for all demand projections through the year 2031. (Figure
4.)

o With respect to nonpotable water, currently available supplies are adequate to meet
projected annual demands for both The baseline and with-projecf demand projections
under both dry-year conditions through the year 2020. (Figures 5,6,7 and 8). IRWD is
proceeding with the implementation of under-development nonpotable supplies, as
shown in the Figures, to improve local reliability during dry-year conditions.

The foregoing Figures provide an overview of IRWD potable and nonpotable water supply
capabilities. More detailed information on the anticipated development and use of supplies,
which incorporates source costs and reliability issues, is provided in the WRMP.

Margins of safety. The Figures and other information described in this assessment
show that IRWD's assessment of supply availability contains several margins of safety or
buffers:

. "Reserve" water supplies (excess of supplies over demands) will be available to serve
as a buffer against inaccuracies in demand projections, future changes in land use, or
alterations in supply availability.

o The potential exists for the treatment and conversion of some reserve nonpotable
supplies to potable water.

o Conservative estimates of annual potable and nonpolable imporfedsupplies have
been made based on connected delivery capacity (by application of peaking factors as
described below in Section 2, footnote 1); additional supplies are expected to be
available from these sources, based on legal entitlements, historical uses and

B-19
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar



information provided by MWD. ln addition to MWD's existing regional supply
assessments, this assessment has considered MWD information concerning recent
events. See "Recent Actions on Delta Pumping," below.

o lnformation provided by MWD, as the imported water supplier, concerning the
adequacy of its regional supplies, summarized herein, demonstrates MWD's inclusion of
reserves in its regional supply assessments. ln addition to MWD's existing regional
supply assessments, this assessment has considered MWD information concerning
recent events. See "Recent ActÍons on Delta Pumping," below.

o Although groundwater supply amounts shown in this assessment assume production
levels within applicable basin production percentages described herein, production of
groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages on a short-term basis,
providing additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.

Recent Actions on Delta Pumpinq. The Sacramento/San Joaquin Delta (Delta) is a
vulnerable component in both the State and Federal systems to convey water from northern
portions of California to areas south of the Delta. lssues associated with the Delta have
generally been known for years; however, most recently, the continuing decline in the number of
endangered Delta smelt resulted in the filing of litigation challenging permits for the operation of
the Delta pumping facilities. On August 31, 2007, a Federal court ordered interim protective
measures for the endangered Delta smelt, including operational limits on Delta pumping, which
will have an effect on State Water Project (SWP) operations and supplies in 2008 and
subsequent years. On June 4,2009, a federal biological opinion imposed rules that will further
restrict water diversions from the Delta to protect endangered salmon and other endangered
fish species. At present, several proceedings concerning Delta operations.are ongoing to
evaluate options to address Delta smelt impacts and other environmental concerns. ln addition
to the regulatory and judicial proceedings to address immediate environmental concerns, the
Delta Vision process and Bay-Delta Gonservation Plan process are defining long-term solutions
for the Delta (MWD 2010 IRP Update). Prior to lhe 2OO7 court decision, MWD's Board
approved a Delta Action Plan in May 2OO7 that described short, mid and long-term conditions
and the actions to mitigate potential supply shortages and to develop and implement long-term
solutions. To comprehensively address the impacts of the SWP cut back on MWD's water
supply development targets, MWD brought to its Board a strategy and work plan to update the
long-term lntegrated Resources Plan (lRP) in December 2OO7. As part of the IRP Update,
MWD developed a region-wide collaborative process that included a broad-based stakeholder
involvement. MWD held several stakeholder forums in 2008 and 2009 and the MWD Board
adopted the 2010 IRP Update on October 12,2A10. ln the 2010 IRP Update, MWD identified
changes to the long-term plan and established direction to address the range of potential
changes in water supply planning. The IRP also discusses dealing with uncertainties related to
impacts of climate change (see additional discussion of this below) as well as actions to protect
endangered fisheries. Based on MWD's Findings and Conclusions as stated in the MWD 2010
IRP Update, MWD's reliability goal that full-service demands at the retail level will be satisfied
for allforeseeable hydrologic conditions remains unchanged in the 2010 IRP Update, and MWD
will accomplish this through its core resources strategies. The 2010lRP Update emphasizes an
evolving approach and suite of actions to address the water supply challenges that are posed
by uncertain weather patterns, regulatory and environmental restrictions, water quality impacts
and changes in the state and the region. MWD's Adaptive Resource Management Strategy
includes three components: Core Resources Strategy, Supply Buffer lmplementation and
FoundationalActions which together provides the basis for the 2010 IRP Update. The 2010 IRP
Update expands the concept of developing a planning buffer from the 2004 IRP Update by

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Arear

B-20



implementing a supply buffer equal to 10 percent of the total retail demand. MWD will
collaborate with the member agencies to implement this buffer through complying with Senate
Bill 7 which calls for the state to reduce per capita water use 20 percent by the year 2020.

IRWD's Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD: MWD states it is
sufficiently reliable to meet full-service demands at the retail level for all foreseeable hydrologic
conditions. For purposes of ensuring a conservative analysis, IRWD has compiled information
from the prior "MWD IRP lmplementation Reporf' (October 2010) and MWD's RUWMP
(November 2010), to provide information in this assessment relative to how reduced SWP
supplies could potentially affect IRWD's supplies from MWD.

Based on IRWD's evaluation of MWD's SWP supplies, IRWD estimates thatthe 22o/o
used by MWD's October 2OO7 IRP lmplementation Report as a potential reduction of MWD's
SWP supplies conservatively translates to approximately 16% reduction in all of MWD's
imported supplies over the years 2010 through 2035.2 For this purpose it is assumed that
MWD's total supplies consist only of imported SWP and Colorado deliveries. As shown in
MWD's RUWMP (Tables A.3-7), SWP deliveries on average over the Z}-year period are
1 ,752,000 acre-feet and Colorado average supplies are 656,000 acre-feet. A 22/o reduction of
SWP supplies equates to 385,400 acre-feet which is 16% of MWD's total imported supplies.
Based on this estimate, this assessment projects a 16% reduction in MWD supplies available to
IRWD for the years 2010 through 2035, using IRWD's connected capacity without any water
supply allocation imposed by MWD. This reduction in MWD supplies is reflected in Figures 1, 2,
3,5,6, and7.

As an alternative means of analyzinglhe 22/" stated reduction, Figures 1a,2a, and 3a
show IRWD estimated supplies in all of the 5-year increments (average and single and multiple
dry years) under a short-term MWD allocation scenario whereby MWD declares Shortage Stage
2 and a 1O'/" cutback is applied to IRWD's actual usage rather than its connected capacity. ln
February 2009, MWD adopted a Water Supply Allocation Plan based on its declared level of
shortage. ln response to potential water shortages and a request by MWD to have water
service providers within its service area adopt a water conservation ordinance, in February
2009, IRWD updated Section 15 of its Rules and Regulations - Water Conservation and Water
Supply Shortage Program and also updated its Water Shortage Contingency Plan which is a
supporting document for Section 15. Section 15 of the Rules and Regulations serves as
IRWD's "conservation ordinance". As stated in IRWD's Water Shortage Contingency Plan, use
of local supplies, storage and other supply augmentation measures can mitigate shortages, and
are assumed to be in use to the maximum extent possible during declared shortage levels.

t MWD's 2010 RUWMP cites to DWR's Water Allocation Analysis dated March 22,2010, which incorporated the
Delta smelt biological opinion's effect on SWP operations, export restrict¡ons could reduce deliveries to MWD by 150
to 200 thousand acre-feet for 2010. Assuming this estimated SWP reduction amount is included in the final RUWMP
adopted by MWD, that amount in acre feet would be equivalent to about 12% reduction in SWP supplies, a smaller
percentage reduction than MWD's 2007 figure ol 22o/o that was used by IRWD for purposes of this analysis.

Waler Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning

B-21



Under shortage scenarios, IRWD may need to supplement supplies with production of
groundwater, which can exceed the applicable basin production percentage on a short-term
basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.3 ln addition, if needed
resultant net shortage levels can be addressed by demand reduction programs as described in
IRWD's Water Shoftage Contingency Plan.

Listed below are Figures provided comparing projected potable water supplies and demands in
all of the five year increments, under a temporary MWD allocation scenario:

Figure 1a: Normal Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) - Potable Water
Figure 2a: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) - Potable Water
Figure 3a: Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) - Potable Water

It can be noted that IRWD's above approach is conservative, in that IRWD evaluates the
effect of the 16% reduction through 2031 and shows the effect of current allocation scenarios in
all of the five-year increments but MWD reports that it has made significant progress in other
water resource categories such as transfers, groundwater storage and developing other local
resources, and supplies will be available from these resources over the long-term.

Climate Change. The California Department of Water Resources ("DWR') released a
report "Progress on lncorporating Climate Change into Management of California's Water
Resources" (July 2006), considering the impacts of climate change on the State's water supply.
DWR emphasizes that'the report represents an example of an impacts assessment based on
four scenarios defining an expected range of potential climate change impacts." DWR's major
goal is to extend the analysis for longterm water resource planning from "assessing impacts" to
"assessing risk." The report presents directions for further work in incorporating climate change
into the management of California's water resources. Emphasis is placed on associating
probability estimates with potential climate change scenarios in order to provide policymakers
with both ranges of impacts and the likelihoods associated with those impacts. DWR's report
acknowledges "that all results presented in this report are preliminary, incorporate several
assumptions, reflect a limited number of climate change scenarios, and do not address the
likelihood of each scenario. Therefore, these results are not sufficient by themselves to make
policy decisions."

ln MWD's 2010 IRP Update, MWD recognizes there is a significant uncertainty in the
impact of climate change on water supply and changes in weather patterns could significantly
affect water supply reliability. MWD plans to hedge against supply and environmental
uncertainties by implementing a supply buffer equivalent to 10 percent of total retail demand.
This buffer will be implemented through meeting the SB7 water use efficiency goals,
implementing aggressive adaptive actions, development of local supplies and transfers.

3 ln these scenarios, it is anticipated that other water suppliers who produce water from the Orange County Basin will
also experience cutbacks of imported supplies and will increase groundwater production and that Orange County
Water District (OCWD) imported replenishment water may also be cutback. The OCWD's'2008-2009 Engineefs
Report on the groundwater conditions, water supply and basin utilization" references a report which recommends a
basin management strategy that provides general guidelines for annual basin refill or storage decrease based on the
level of accumulated overdraft. lt states, "an accumulated overdraft of 500,000 AF is only acceptable for short
durations due to drought conditions...and an optimal basin management target of 100,000 AF of accumulated
overdraft provides sufficient storage space to accommodate increased supplies from one wet year while also
providing enough water in storage to offset decreased supplies during a two- to three-year drought." MWD
replenishment water is a supplemental source of recharge water and OCWD estimates other main supply sources for
recharge are available.

B-22
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning



Per MWD's RUWMP, MWD continues to incorporate current climate change science into
its planning efforts. As stated in MWD's RUWMP, the 2010 IRP Update supports the MWD
Board adopted principles on climate change by: 1) Supporting reasonable, economically viable,
and technologically feasible management strategies for reducing impacts on water supply and
2) Supporting flexible "no regref'solutions that provide water supply and quality benefits while
increasing the ability to manage future climate change impacts, and 3) Evaluating staff
recommendations regarding climate change and water resources against the California
Environmental Quality Act to avoid adverse effects on the environment. Potential climate
change impacts on state, regional and local water supplies and relevant information for the
Orange County hydrologic basin and Santa Ana Watershed have not been sufficiently
developed at this time to permit IRWD to assess and quantify the effect of any such impact on
its conclusions in the Assessment.

Catastrophic Supply lnterruption Planning. MWD has developed Emergency
Storage Requirements (2010 RUWMP) to safeguard the region from catastrophic loss of water
supply. MWD has made substantial investments in emergency storage and MWD has based its
planning on a 100% reduction in its supplies for a period of six months. The emergency plan
outlines that under such a catastrophe, non-firm service deliveries would be suspended, and
firm supplies would be restricted by a mandatory cutback of 25 percent from normal year
demand deliveries. ln addition, MWD discusses the long term Delta plan in its 2010 RUWMP
(pages 3-18 to 3-21). IRWD has addressed supply interruption planning in its WRMP and
UWMP.

Detailed Assessment

1. Supply and demand comparison

Comparisons of IRWD's average annual and peak (maximum day) demands and
supplies, under baseline (existing and committed demand, without the Project), with-
project (baseline plus Project), and full build-ouf development projections, are shown in
the following Figures 1-4 (potable water), Figures 5-8 (nonpotable water) and Figures
1a,2a, and 3a (short term MWD allocation potable water). See also the "Recent Actions
on Delta Pumping" above.

B-23

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 1)



Figure 1

IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

100,000

2010 201 5

Notes: By agreement, IRWD is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available

supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply'Groundwater).

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al16o/o reduction off of average connected capacity.

cto

b 75,000
CL

oolr
I

E

å s0,000

-l 
Future Groundwater

-¡ 
MWD lmported

-t 
lrvine Desalter

I DRWF/DATS/OPA

--{--- Baseline Demand

- È - Demand with Project

..+ WRMP Bu¡ld-out Demand

(in acre-feet Per Year) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable SuPolies
MWD lmported (EocF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under DeveloPment

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supplv CaPabilitY

41,929
37,900

5,640

95,469

41,929
37,900

5,640

15,600
101.069

41,929
37,900

5,640

22,100
107,569

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 18.069

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 18,069

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

56,353
56,402
56,933

70,989
71,281
71,725

80,140
80,677
80,961

94,575 87,440
85,355 88,415
85,445 87,836

Reserve Supplv with Proiect 29,067 29,788 26,893 32,714 29,654

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Areas 3c

B-24



Figure 2
¡RWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand ' Potable ìfVater

100,000

Go

b 75,000
CL

o
ú'lr
Iob 5o,ooo

-¡ 

Future Groundwater

-¡MWDlmported
=t lrvine Desalter

I DRWF/DATS/OPA

---a--- Baseline Demand

- È - Dêmand with Pro¡ect

+ WRMP Build-out Demand

2010 2131

(in acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2131

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lruine Desalter
Supplies Under DeveloPment

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

41,929
37,900

5,640

85,469

41,929 41 ,929 41,929
37,900 37,900 37,900
5,640 5,640 5,640

15,600 22,100 32,600

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
101 ,069 107,569 1 18,069 1 18,

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

60,298
60,350
60,919

75,958 85,750 90,495 93,561

76,271 86,324 91,330 94,604
76,746 86,629 91,426 93,985

Reserve Suppfy with Project L4,55O 24,323 2O,94O 26,643 24,084

Notes: Suppl6s identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Regional Urban Water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage

of groundwater under drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan). Demands increased 7o/"from Normal-Year. By agreement' IRWD

is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments

(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 160/o reduction off of average connecled capacity.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/
B-25



Figure 3
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

100,000

túo
L 75.000o
o.
oolr
Io
b 50,000

-l 

Futurê Groundwater

-¡MWDlmported
:l lrvine Desaller

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---r--- Basel¡ne Demand

- È - Demand with Project

+ WRMP Build-out Demand

2010 2015 2131

lin acre-feet per Year) 2010 2015 2020 2025 ___431

Current Potable Supplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supolies Under DeveloPment

Future Groundwater
Maximum Suoolv Caoabilitv

41,929
37,900

5,640

85,469

41,929
37,900

5,640

15,600
101 .069

41,929
37,900

5,640

22,100
107,569

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
118,069

41,929
37,900

5,640

32,600
1 18,069

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

60,298
60,350
60,919

75,958
76,271
76,746

85,750 90,495 93,561

86,324 91,330 94,604
86,629 91,426 93,985

Notes: Supplies identical ro Normal-year based on Metropolitan's Regional Urban Water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage

ot groundwáter under drought conditions (ocwD Master Plan). Demands increased 7o/olrom NormaþYear. By agreement' IRWD

is rãquired to count the production from the lrvine subbasin in calculating available supplies for Tlc developments

(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD lmported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction otf of average connected capacity.

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage F¡elds Planning Areas 30

B-26



Figure 4

250

o
t,
s 200
c
o(,
oo
b tso
0.
oo
o
E 100

f)

IRWD Maximum-Day Supply & Demand'Potable Water

-t 

Futurecroundwaler

-¡MwDlmported

-¡ 

lrv¡neoesalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---a--- Basel¡ne Demand

- t- - Demand with Project

.+ WRMPBU¡ld-out Demand

rin efsì 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable SuPplies
MWD lmported (EocF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Suoolies Under Development
Future Groundwater
Maximum Supply CaPabilitY

124.1

91.4
10.6

226.1

124.1

91.4
10.6

12.7
238.8

124.1

91.4
10.6

30.7
256.8

124.1
91.4
10.6

124.1

91.4
10.6

48.7
274.8

48.7
274.8

Baseline Demand
Demand with Proiect
WRMP Build-out Demand

140.1
140.2
141.5

176.5
177.2
178.3

199.2
200.6
201.3

210.3
212.2
212.4

217.4
219.8
218.4

84.6 60.5 55.5 62.4 56.4

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 1)

B-27



Figure 5

(g
o
'- 4o,ooo
o
CL

oo
lÀ

Io
o

20,000

201 0 2015

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time'

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 16% reduction ofl of average connected capacity.

IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

-t 

FutureMWRP&LAWRP

-l 

MWDlmported (Baker, ILP)

- 

Nal¡vewater

-¡ 

lru¡neDesalter

E:t Exist¡ng MWRP&LAWFP

--{--- Bâseline Demand

- È - Demand with Project

+ WRMPBuild-out Demand

(in acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Nonootable SuPolies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

lrvine Desalter
Native Water
Supplies Under DeveloPment

Future MWRP&LAWRP 10,100 10,100 10,100 10,100

Maximum Supply Capability 57,035 57,035 57,035 57'035

18,657
20,380

3,898
4.000

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
4,000

10,100
57,035

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

36,335
36,152
36,376

32,303
32,023
32,560

33,198
32,670
33,661

34,948 36,019
34,158 35,083
35,608 36,845

ffith Proiect 20,659 20,659 24,475 23,374 20,190

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/
B-28



Figure 6

(g
o

o
CL

o
o

TL
¡o
o

20,000

2010 2015

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 16o/o reduction off of average connected capacity'

IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable water

-¡ 

FutureMWRP&LAWFIP

-¡ 

MWDlmported (Baker, ILP)

-Nativewater

-l 

lruine Desalter

-¡ 

Exìsting MWRP&LAWRP

--{--- Basel¡ne Demand

- |F - Demand with Project

--+ WRMP Build-out Demand

(in acre-feet per vea0 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Nonpotable SuPPlies

Existing MWRP&LAWRP
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

lrvine Desalter
Native Water
Supplies Under DeveloPment

Future MWRP&LAWRP 10,100 10,100 10,100 10,100

Maximum Supply Capability 54,035 54,035 54,035 54,035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project

38,878 34,565 35,521
38,683 34,264 34,957

37,394 38,541
36,549 37,539
38,101 39,424WRMP Build-out Demand 38,922 34,839 36,017

neserve supplv with Proiect 15,352 19,771 19,078 17,486 16,496

Waler Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Areas

B-29



Figure 7
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

L
Go

b 4o,ooo
CL

ooll
¡o
o

20,000

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time'

MWD lmported Supplies are shown al 16o/o reduction off of average connected capacity.

: FUIUTeMWRP&LAWRP

-l 

MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

-Nal¡vewaler

-l 

¡ruineDesalter

-t 

ExistingMWBP&LAWRP

--{--- Baseline Demand

- È - Ðemand with Project

+ WRMP Build-Õut Demand

lin acre-feet per Vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Nonpotable SuPPlies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

lrvine Desalter
Native Water
Supolies Under DeveloPment
Future MWRP&LAWRP
Maximum Supplv Capabilitv

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54.035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
54,035

18,657
20,380

3,898
1,000

10,100
s4.035

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

38,878 34,565 35,521 37,394 38,541

38,683 34,264 34,957 36,549 37,539

38,922 34,839 36,017 38,101 39,424

ffiect 15,352 19,771 19,078 17,486 16,496

Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Areas

B-3 0



Figure I

an

()

!r 12O
c
oooo
be0
CL

oo
.g 60
ll
o

-I 

FUTUTeMWFP&LAWFP

-¡ 

MWDhported (Bakef, ILP)

I Nat¡vewater

-l 

lruineDesalter

-l 

Ex¡st¡ngMWÊP&LAWRP

--{--- Baseline Demand

- 
.- - Demand with Project

+ WRMPBuìld-out Demand

2010 201 5 2031

IRWD Maximum-Dry Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

150

2005

Note: Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

2020

r\ # Ã
-il-\ -=':--

--
='r--

lin cfs) 2005 2010 2015 2020 2031

Current Nonpotable SuPPlies

Existing MWRP&LAWRP
lrvine Desalter
Native Water
MWD lmported (Baker, ILP)

Suoplies Under DeveloPment

Future MWRP&LAWRP
Maximum Supplv CaPabilitY

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.O

174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0

174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0
174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0
174.7

32.2
5.4
5.5

117.7

14.0

174.7

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project
WRMP Build-out Demand

125.5
124.8
125.6

111.5
1 10.6
112.4

114.6
112.8
116.2

120.7
117.9
123.0

124.4
121.1

127.2

Reselve Supply with Proiect 49.1 62.3 58.5 51.8 47'5

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas !-

B-31



Figure 1a

IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water
Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

100,000

50,000

201 0

Notes: By agreement, IRWD is required to count the production from the lrvine Subbasin in calculating available

supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD lmported Supplies as estimated under a short-term 10olo allocation,

Shortage Stage 2 in all of the S-year increments. However, it is likely that such a scenario would only be temporary.

Under ã MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin

percentages on a short-term basis. IRWD may also reduce demands by implement¡ng shortage contingency measures

as described in the UWMP.

125,000

75,ooo

-l 

Future Groundwater

-¡MWDlmported

-¡ 

lrvine Desalter

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

---a--- Basel¡ne Demand

- t- - Demand with Project

+ WRMP Build-out Demand

túo

o
o.
oolrto
(,

lin acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable Suoplies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP,

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Supplies Under Develooment

Future Groundwater
Maximum Supply CapabiliU

ocF) 25,000
37,900

5,640

68,540

26,275
37,900

5,640

15,600
95,415

27,616
37,900

5,640

22,100
93,256

29,024
37,900

5,640

32,600
105,164

29,608
37,900

5,640

32,600
105,748

Baseline Demand
Demand with Proiect
WRMP Build-out Demand

56,353
56,402
56,402

70,989
71,281
71,725

80,140
80,677
80,961

84,575 87,440
85,355 88,415
85,445 87,836

Reserve Supply with Proiect 12,138 14,134 12,579 19,809 17,332

Water Supply Assessmenl - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 3

B-32



Go

i 7s,ooo
CL

oo
IL

IE so.ooo(,

Figure 2a

IRWD Single Dry-Year supply & Demand - Potable water

125,000

100,000

Ë ä.]¡;il;oü"iir.'" prooucrion from rhe trvine subbasin in calculating available supplies for Tlc developments

-t 

Future Groundwater

-tMWDhpofted

-l 

lrvin€ Desaller

- 

DRWF/DATS/OPA

--.r--- Baseline Demand

- .- - Demand with Pro¡ect

-+ WRMP Bu¡ld-out Demand

Notes: supplies identical to Normal-year based on Metropolitan's Regional urban water Management Plan (1 118105) and usage

of groundwater under orought conditions (OCWD lta:ler Þtan¡. oemånds increased.11,1t11"tÎTÍl-t^Îll-?llgt"ement' lRwD

(see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD lmported Supplies as estimated under a short-term 10% allocation'

Sfrortage Stage 2 in all oithe S-year increments. However, it is likely that such a scenario would only be temporary'

under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin

fercentages on a short-tórm basis. IRWD'may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency measures

as described in the UWMP.

MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Suoolies Under DeveloPment

Future Groundwater

25,000
37,900

5,640

27,589
37,900

5,640

15,600

28,968
37,900

5,640

22,100

30,417
37,900

5,640

32,600

31,938
37,900

5,640

32,600

Baseline Demand
Demand with Project

64,519
64,575

75,958
76,271

85,750
86,324

90,495 93,561
91,330 94,604

Reserve SuPPIY with T 9.983 7,980 15191--l

Waler Supply Assessmont - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30 B-33



Figure 3a

125,000

lRwD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable water
Under TemporarY MWD Allocation*

2010

100,000

IEo
L 75,000
o
a.
o
c,lr
È 5o,ooo()

25,000

-t 

Futurecroundwater

-tMWDlmported

-¡ 

lrvine Dêsalter

I ORWFiDATS/OPA

--.a--- Baseline Demand

- G - Demand with Proiect

+ WRMPBuild-out Demand

lin acre-feet per vear) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2031

Current Potable SuoPlies
MWD lmported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF)

DRWF/DATS/OPA
lrvine Desalter
Suoolies Under Develooment

Future Groundwater
Maximum Suoolv Caoabilitv

25,000
37,900

5,640

27,589
37,900

5,640

15,600

29,968
37,900

5,640

22,100

30,417
37,900

5,640

32.600

31,938
37,900

5,640

32,600

68,540 86,729 94,608 106,557 108,078Æ
Baseline Demand
Demand with Proiect

64,519 75,958 85,750
64,575 76,271 86,324

WRMP Build-out Dema¡d 65,183 76,746 86,629

90,495 93,561

91,330 94,604
91,426 93,985

neservesupp|yw¡thProjectS'35710'4588'284.15'zzlló'4/ó
Notes: suppl6s ident¡cal to Normal-year based on Metropolitan's Regional urban water Management Plan (11/8/05) and usage

ot grounowáter under drought conditions (ocwD Master Þtan¡. oemánds increased 7o/olrom Normal-Year' By agreement' IRWD

is räquired to count the proãucilon from the lrvine subbasin in calculaìing available supplies for Tlc developments

(see Potable Supply'Groundwater).

.For illusrration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD lmported Supplies as estimated under a short-term 10olo allocation'

Snortáée Stage 2 in all of the s-year increments. However, it is likely that such a scenario would only be temporary

under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin

percentages on a short-term basis. IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shoftage contingency measures

as described in the UWMP.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 3
B-34



2. lnformation concerning supplies
(a)(1) Existinq sources of identified water suoply for the prooosed oroiect: IRWD does not allocate

particular supplies to any project, but identifies total supplies for its service area, as shown in the following table:

Current Supplies
Potable - lmported

East Orange County Feeder No. 2

Allen-McOolloch Pipeline*

Orange County Feeder

Potable - Groundwater
Dyer Road Wellfield
OPA Well
Deep Aquifer Treatment System-DATS
lrvine Desalter

Total Potable Current Supplies
Nonpotable - Reclaimed Water

MWRP (18 mgd)

LAWRP (5.5 mgd)

Nonpotable - lmported
Baker Aqueduct
lrvine Lake Pipeline

Nonpotable - Groundwater
I rvine Desalter-Nonpotable

Nonpotable Native
lrvine Lake

Total Nonpotable Current Supplies

93,456

23,315

24,262

3,898

Supplies Under Development
Potable Supplies
Wells2l &22
Well 106
Well53
Future OPA Wells
Anaheim wellfield
Wells 51 & 52

Tustin Legacy wells
Total Potable Under Development Supplies

Nonpotable Supplies: Future MWRP&LAWRP Reclaimed

Total Under Development
TotalSupplies

Potable Supplies
Nonpotable Supplies

47,050

126,056
69,925

1 Based on converting maximum day capac¡ty to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 1.8 (see Footnote 3, page 22).

2 Contract amount - See Potable Supply-Groundwatê(ii¡).

3 Contract amount - See Potable Supply-Groundwater (iv) and (v). Maximum day well capac¡ty is compatible with conlract amount.

4 MWRP 18.0 mgd treatment capacity (17,400 AFY RW production) and LAWRP 5.5 mgd tertiary treatment capac¡ty (5,975 AFY)

S Based on converting maximum day capac¡ty to average by dividing the capac¡ty by a peaking factor of 2.5 (see Footnote 3 , page 22).

6 Based on IRWD's proportion of lrvine Lake imported water storage; Actual ILP capacity would allow the use of additional imported

waterfrom MWD through the Santiago Lateral.

7 Contract amount - See Nonpotable Supply-Groundwater (i) and (i¡). Maximum day well capacity (cfs) is compatible w¡th contract amount.

I Based on 70 years histor¡cal average of Santiago Creek lnflow into lrvine Lake.

I Estimated combined capacity of wells.

10 Future eslimated MWRP & LAWRP reclaimed water production.
*64.7 cfs is current assigned capacity; based on increased peak flow, IRWD can purchase 10 cfs more (see page 23 (bxlX¡ii))

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Arear B-35



(b) Required information concernino currently available and under-development water
supply entitlements. water riqhts and water service contracts:

(1) Written contracts or other proof of entitlement.a s

¡POTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED6

Potable imported water seruice connections (currently available).

(y' Potable imported water is delivered to IRWD at various service connections to
the imported water delivery system of The Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California ("MWD"): service connections CM-014 and OC-7 (Orange
County Feeder); CM-10, CM-12, OC-38, OC-39, OC-57, OC-58, OC-63 (East
Orange County Feeder No. 2); and OC-68, OC-71, OC-72, OC-73/73A, OC-74,
OC-75, OC-83, OC-84, OC-87 (Allen-McColloch Pipeline). IRWD's entitlements
regarding service from the MWD delivery system facilities are described in the
following paragraphs and summarized in the above Table ((2XaX1)). IRWD
receives imported water service through MunicipalWater District of Orange
County ('MWDOC"), a member agency of MWD.

AI len-McCol I oc h P i pel i ne ( " AM P ") (c u rrently ava i I able).

(ii) Agreement For Sale and Purchase of Allen-McColloch Pipeline, dated as of
July 1, 1994 (Metropolitan Water District Agreement No. 4623) ("AMP Sale
Agreement"). Under the AMP Sale Agreement, MWD purchased the Allen-
McColloch Pipeline (formerly known as the "Diemer lntertie") from MWDOC, the
MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation and certain agencies, including IRWD and
Los Alisos Water District ("LAWD"),7 identified as "Participants" therein. Section
5.02 of the AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to meet IRWD's and the other
Participants' requests for deliveries and specified minimum hydraulic grade lines
at each connection serving a Participant, subject to availability of water. MWD

o ln some instances, the contractual and other legal entitlements referred to in the following descriptions are
stated in terms of flow capacities, in cubic feet per second ("cfs"). ln such instances, the cfs flows are converted to
volumes of AFY for purposes of analyzing supply sufficiency in this assessment, by dividing the capac¡ty by a peaking
factor of 1.8 (potable) or 2.5 (nonpotable), consistent with maximum day peaking factors used in the WRMP. The
resulting reduction in assumed available annual AFY volumes through the application of these factors recognizes that
connected capacity is provided to meet peak demands and that seasonal variation in demand and limitations in local
storage prevent these capacities from being utilized at peak capacity on a year-round basis. However, the
application of these factors produces a conservat¡vely low estimate of annual AFY volumes from these connections;
additional volumes of water are expected to be available from these sources.

t ln the following discussion, contractual and other legal entitlements are characterized as either potable or
nonpotable, according to the characterization of the source of supply. Some of the nonpotable supplies surplus to
nonpotable demand could potentially be rendered potable by the addition of treatment facilities; however, IRWD has
no current plans to do so.

6 See lmpoded Supply - Additional lnformation, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD
supply.

7 IRWD has succeeded to LAWD's interests in the AMP and other LAWD water supply facilities and rights
mentioned in this assessment, by virtue of the consolidation of IRWD and LAWD on December 31, 2000.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Plannir

B-36



agrees to operate the AMP as any other MWD pipeline. MWD has the right to
operate the AMP on a "utility basis," meaning that MWD need not observe
capacity allocations of the Participants but may use available capacity to meet
demand at any service connection.

The AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to monitor and project AMP demands
and to construct specified pump facilities or make other provision for augmenting
MWD's capacity along the AMP, at MWD's expense, should that be necessary to
meet demands of all of the Participants (Section 5.08).

(iii) Agreement For Allocation of Proceeds of Sale of Allen-McColloch Pipeline,
dated as of July 1, 1994 ('AMP Allocation Agreemenf'). This agreement, entered
into concurrently with the AMP Sale Agreement, provided each Participant,
including IRWD, with a capacity allocation in the AMP, for the purpose of
allocating the sale proceeds among the Participants in accordance with their prior
contractual capacities adjusted to conform to their respective future demands.
IRWD's capacity under the AMP Allocation Agreement (including its capacity as
legal successor agency to LAWD) is 64.69 cfs at IRWD's first four AMP
connections, 49.69 cfs at IRWD's next five downstream AMP connections and
35.01 and 10.00 cfs, respectively at IRWD's remaining two downstream
connections. The AMP Allocation Agreement further provides that if a
Participant's peak flow exceeds its capacity, the Participant shall "purchase"
additional capacity from the other Participants who are using less than their
capacity, until such time as MWD augments the capacity of the AMP. The
foregoing notwithstanding, as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the
allocated capacities do not alter MWD's obligation under the AMP Sale
Agreement to meet all Participants'demandé along the AMP, and to augment the
capacity of the AMP if necessary. Accordingly, under these agreements, IRWD
can legally increase its use of the AMP beyond the above-stated capacities, but
would be required to reimburse other Participants from a portion of the proceeds
IRWD received from the sale of the AMP.

(iv)lmprovement Subleases (or "FAP" Subleases) IMWDOC and LAWD;
MWDOC and lRWDl, dated August 1 , 1989; 1996 Amended and Restated Allen-
McColloch Pipeline Subleases IMWDOC and LAWD; MWDOC and IRWD], dated
March 1, 1996. IRWD subleases its AMP capacity, including the capacity it
acquired as successor to LAWD. To facilitate bond financing for the construction
of the AMP, it was provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and
subsequently MWDOC, would have ownership of the pipeline, and the
Participants would be sublessees. As is the case with the AMP Sale Agreement,
the subleases similarly provide that water is subject to availability,

East Orange County Feeder No.2 (*EOCF#2") (cunently available).

(v/ Agreement For Joint Exercise of Powers For Construction, Operation and
Maintenance of East Orange County Feeder No. 2, dated July 1 1 , 196'1 , as
amended on July 25,1962 and April 26, 1965; Agreement Re Capacity Rights ln
Proposed Water Line, dated September 11, 1961 ("IRWD MWDOC Assignment
Agreement"); Agreement Regarding Capacity Rights ln the East Orange County
Feeder No. 2, dated August 28,2OOO ('IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement').
East Orange County Feeder No. 2 ("EOCF#Z'), a feeder linking Orange County

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar
B-37



with MWD's feeder system, was constructed pursuant to a joint powers
agreement among MWDOC (then called Orange County MunicipalWater
District), MWD, Coastal MunicipalWater District ("Coastal"), Anaheim and Santa
Ana. A portion of IRWD's territory is within MWDOC and the remainder is within
the former Coastal (which was consolidated with MWDOC in 2001). Under the
IRWD MWDoc Assignment Agreement, MWDoc assigned 41 cfs of capacity to
IRWD in the reaches of EOCF#2 upstream of the point known as Coastal
Junction (reaches 1 through 3), and 27 cts in reach 4, downstream of coastal
Junction. Similarly, under the IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement, prior to
Coastal's consolidation with MWDOC, Coastal assigned to IRWD 0.4 cfs of
capacity in reaches 1 through 3 and 0.6 cfs in reach 4 of EOCF#2. Delivery of
water through EOCF#2 is subject to the rules and regulations of MWD and
MWDOC, and is further subject to application and agreement of IRWD respecting
turnouts.

Orange County Feeder (currently availablel

(vi) Agreement, dated March 13, 1956. This 1956 Agreement between
MWDOC's predecessor district and the Santa Ana Heights Water Company
("SAHWC") provides for delivery of MWD imported supply to the former SAHWC
service area. SAHWC's interests were acquired on behalf of IRWD through a
stock purchase and IRWD annexation of the SAHWC service area in 1997. The
supply is delivered through a connection to MWD's Orange County Feeder
designated as OC-7.

(vii) Agreement For Transfer of lnterest ln Pacific Coast Highway Water
Transmission and Storage Facilities From The lrvine Company To the lrvine
Ranch Water District, dated April 23, 1984; Joint Powers Agreement For the
Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Sections 1a, 1b and 2 of the Coast
Supply Line, dated June 9, 1989;Agreement, dated January 13, 1gS5 ("1955
Agreement"). The jointly constructed facility known as the Coast Supply Line
("CSL'), extending southward from a connection with MWD's Orange County
Feeder at Fernleaf Street in Newport Beach, was originally constructed pursuant
to a 1952 agreement among Laguna Beach County Water District ('LBCWD'),
The lrvine Company (TlC) and South Coast County Water District. Poftions were
later reconstructed. Under the above-referenced transfer agreement in 1984,
IRWD succeeded to TIC's interests in the CSL. The CSL is presently operated
under the above-referenced 1989 joint powers agreement, which reflects IRWD's
ownership of 10 cfs of capacity. The 1989 agreement obligates LBCWD, as the
managing agent and trustee for the CSL, to purchase water and deliver it into the
CSL for IRWD. LBCWD purchases such supply, delivered by MWD to the
Fernleaf connection, pursuant to the 1955 Agreement with Coastal (now
MWDOC).

¡POTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER

(i) Orange County Water District Act, Water Code App., Ch. 40 ("Act"). IRWD is
an operator of groundwater-producing facilities in the Orange County
Groundwater Basin (the "Basin"). Although the rights of the producers within the
Basin vis a vis one another have not been adjudicated, they nevertheless exist
and have not been abrogated by the Act (940-77). The rights consist of

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Plannin
B-39



municipalappropriators'rights and may include overlying and riparian rights.
The Basin is managed by OCWD under the Act, which functions as a statutorily-
imposed physical solution. The Act empowers OCWD to impose replenishment
assessments and basin equity assessments on production and to require
registration of water-producing facilities and the filing of certain reports; however,
OCWD is expressly prohibited from limiting extraction unless a producer agrees
(S 40-2(6) (c)) and from impairing vested rights to the use of water (S 40-77).
Thus, producers may install and operate production facilities under the Act;
OCWD approval is not required. OCWD is required to annually investigate the
condition of the Basin, assess overdraft and accumulated overdraft, and
determine the amount of water necessary for replenishment (540-26). ocwD
has studied the Basin replenishment needs and potential projects to address
growth in demand until2020. This is described in detail in the OCWD Master
Plan Report, dated April, 1999. OCWD's analysis has been expanded and
updated through 2025 in its Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan (January,
2006).

(ii) lruine Ranch water District v. orange county water District, ocsc No.
795827. A portion of IRWD is outside the jurisdictional boundary of OCWD.
IRWD is eligible to annex the Santa Ana River Watershed portion of this territory
to OCWD, under OCWD's current annexation policy (Resolution No. 86-2-1S,
adopted on February 19, 1986 and reaffirmed on June 2, lggg), and anticipates
doing so. However, this September 29, 1998, Superior Court ruling indicates that
IRWD is entitled to deliver groundwater from the Basin to the IRWD service area
irrespective of whether such area is also within OCWD.

Dyer Road Wellfield (DWRF) / Deep Aquifer Treatment System (DATS)
(currently available)

(iii) Agreement For Water Production and Transmission Facilities, dated March
18, 1981, as amended May 2, 1984, September 19, 1gg0 and November O, 1g9g
(the "DRWF Agreemenf'). The DRWF Agreement, among IRWD, OCWD and
santa Ana, concerns the development of IRWD's Dyer Road wellfield ("DRWF'),
within the Basin. The DRWF consists of 16 wells pumping from the non-colored
water zone of the Basin and 2 wells (with colored-water treatment facilities)
pumping from the deep, colored-water zone of the Basin (the colored-water
portion of the DRWF is sometimes referred to as the Deep Aquifer Treatment
System or "DATS".) Under the DRWF Agreement, an "equivalent" basin
production percentage (BPP) has been established for the DRWF, currently
28,000 AFY of non-colored water and 8,000 AFY of colored water, provided any
amount of the latter 8,000 AFY not produced results in a matching reduction of
the 28,000 AFY BPP. Although typically IRWD production from the DRWF does
not materially exceed the equivalent BPP, the equivalent BPP is not an extraction
limitation; it results in imposition of monetary assessments on the excess
production. The DRWF Agreement also establishes monthly pumping amounts
for the DRWF. With the addition of the Concentrated Treatment System (CATS),
IRWD has increased the yield of DATS.

Iruine Subbasin / Iruine Desalter (currently avaitable)

(iv) Fvsl Amended and Restated Agreement, dated March 11,20e2, as

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Plann¡ng Aft
B-39



amended June 15, 2006, restating May 5, 1988 agreement ("lrvine Subbasin
Agreement'). TIC has historically pumped agricultural water from the lrvine
Subbasin. (As in the rest of the Basin of which this subbasin is a part, the
groundwater rights have not been adjudicated, and OCWD provides governance
and management under the Act.) The 1988 agreement between IRWD and TIC
provided for the joint use and management of the lrvine Subbasin. The 1988
agreement further provided that the 13,000 AFY annual yield of the lrvine
Subbasin would be allocated 1,000 AFY to IRWD and 12,000 AFY to TlC. Under
the restated lrvine Subbasin Agreement, the foregoing allocations were
superseded as a result of TIC's commencement of the building its Northern
Sphere Area project, with the effect that the Subbasin production capability, wells
and other facilities, and associated rights have been transferred from TIC to
IRWD, and IRWD has assumed the production from the Subbasin. ln
consideration of the transfer, IRWD is required to count the supplies attributable
to the transferred Subbasin production in calculating available supplies for the
Northern Sphere Area project and other TIC development and has agreed that
they will not be counted toward non-TIC development.

A portion of the existing Subbasin water production facilities produce water which
is of potable quality. IRWD could treat some of the water produced from the
Subbasin for potable use, by means of the Desalter and other projects.
Although, as noted above, the Subbasin has not been adjudicated and is
managed by OCWD, TIC reserved water rights from conveyances of its lands as
development over the Subbasin has occurred, and under the lrvine Subbasin
Agreement TIC has transferred its rights to IRWD.

(v) Second Amended and Restated Agreement Between Orange County Water
District and lrvine Ranch Water District Regarding the lrvine Desalter Project,
dated June 1 1, 2001, and other agreements referenced therein. This agreement
provides for the extraction and treatment of subpotable groundwater from the
lrvine Subbasin, a portion of the Basin. As is the case with the remainder of the
Basin, IRWD's entitlement to extract this water is not adjudicated, but the use of
the entitlement is governed by the OCWD Act. (See also, discussion of lrvine
Subbasin in the preceding paragraph.) A portion of the product water has been
delivered into the IRWD potable system, and the remainder has been delivered
into the IRWD nonpotable system.

Orange Park Acres (currently available)

On June 1, 2008, through annexation and merger, IRWD acquired the water
system of the former Orange Park Acres Mutual Water company, including well
IOPA Well]. The well is operated within the Orange County Groundwater Basin.

lruine Wells (under development)

(vr) IRWD is pursuing the installation of production facilities in the west lrvine,
Anaheim, Tustin Legacy and Tustin Ranch portions of the Basin. These
groundwater supplies are considered to be under development; however, four
wells have been drilled and have previously produced groundwater, three wells
have been drilled but have not been used as production wells to date, a site for
an additionalwell and treatment facility has been acquired by IRWD. The

B-40
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Arear



production facilities can be constructed and operated under the Act; no statutory
or contractual approval is required to do so. An agreement with the City of
Anaheim would be developed for production within Anaheim. Appropriate
environmental review would be conducted for each facility. See discussion of
the Act under Potable Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (i), above.

oNONPOTABLE SUPPLY - RECLAIMED

Water Reclamation Plants (currently available)

Water Code Section 1210. IRWD supplies its own reclaimed water from
wastewater collected by IRWD and delivered to IRWD's Michelson Water
Reclamation Plant (MWRP) and Los Alisos Water Reclamation Plant (LAWRP).
MWRP currently has a permitted capacity of 18 million gallons per day (MGD)
and LAWRP currently has a permitted capacity of 5.5 MGD. Water Code Section
1210 provides that the owner of a wastewater treatment plant operated for the
purposes of treating wastes from a sanitary sewer system holds the exclusive
right to the treated effluent as against anyone who has supplied the water
discharged into the sewer system. IRWD's permits for the operation of MWRP
and LAWRP allow only irrigation and other customer uses of reclaimed water,
and do not permit stream discharge of reclaimed water; thus, no issue of
downstream appropriation arises, and IRWD is entitled to deliver all of the
effluent to meet contractual and customer demands.

Water Reclamation Plant Expansion (under development)

IRWD has prepared a Final Environmental lmpact Report for the Michelson
Water Reclamation Plant Phase 2 and 3 Capacity Expansion Project (February,
2006) and the expansion project is under construction. With this expansion,
IRWD plans to increase its capacity on the existing MWRP site to produce
sufficient reclaimed water to meet the projected demand in the year 2031. (lnitial
upgrades that are within existing permit authorizations and CEQA compliance
are completed) Additional reclamation capacity will augment local nonpotable
supplies and improve reliability.

TNONPOTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED!

Baker Pipeline (currently available)

Santiago Aqueduct Commission Joint Powers Agreement, dated September 11,
1 961 , as amended December 20, 1974, January 1 3, 1978, November 1, 1978,
September 1 , 1 981 , October 22, 1986, and July 8, 1999 (the "SAC Agreement');
Agreement Between lrvine Ranch Water District and Carma-Whiting Joint
Venture Relative to Proposed Annexation of Certain Property to lrvine Ranch
Water District, dated May 26,1981 (the'Whiting Annexation Agreement').
Service connections OC-13/13A, OC-33/334. The imported untreated water
pipeline initially known as the Santiago Aqueduct and now known as the Baker

8 See lmported Supply - Additional lnformation, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD
supply.

B-41
Water Supply Assessmenl - Heritage Fields Planning A



Pipeline was constructed under the SAC Agreement, a joint powers agreement.
The Baker Pipeline is connected to MWD's Santiago Lateral. IRWD's capacity in
the Baker Pipeline includes the capacity it subleases as successor to LAWD, as
well as capacity rights IRWD acquired through the Whiting Annexation
Agreement. (To finance the construction of AMP parallel untreated reaches
which were incorporated into the Baker Pipeline, replacing original SAC
untreated reaches that were made a part of the AMP potable system, it was
provided that the MWDoc water Facilities corporation, and subsequently
MWDoc, would have ownership, and the participants would be sublessees.)
IRWD has 52.70 cfs in the first reach, 12.50 cfs in each of the second, third and
foufih reaches and 7.51 cfs in the fifth reach of the Baker Pipeline. Water is
subject to availability from MWD.

oNONPOTABLE SUPPLY - NATIVE

Iruine Lake (currently available)

(t) Permit For Diversion and Use of Water (Permit No. 19306) issued pursuant to
Application No. 27503; License For Diversion and Use of Water (License 2347)
resulting from Application No. 4302 and Permit No. 3238; License For Diversion
and Use of Water (License 2348) resulting from Application No. 9005 and Permit
No. 5202. The foregoing permit and licenses, jointly held by IRWD (as successor
to The lrvine Company (TlC) and Carpenter lrrigation District (ClD)) and Serrano
Water District (SWD), secure appropriative rights to the flows of Santiago Creek.
Under Licenses 2347 and 2348,|RWD and SWD have the right to diversion by
storage at Santiago Dam (lrvine Lake) and a submerged dam, of a total of
25,000 AFY. Under Permit No. 19306, IRWD and SWD have the right to
diversion by storage of an additional 3,000 AFY by flashboards at Santiago Dam
(lrvine Lake). (Rights under Permit No. 19306 may be junior to an ocwD permit
to divert up to 35,000 AFY of Santiago Creek flows to spreading pits downstream
of Santiago Dam.) The combined total of native water that may be diverted to
storage under these licenses and permit is 28,000 AFY. A 1996 amendment to
License Nos. 2347, 2348 and 2349lreplaced by Permit No. 19306 in 19841 limits
the withdrawal of water from the Lake to 15,483 AFY under the licenses. This
limitation specifically references the licenses and doesn't reference water stored
pursuant to other legal entitlements. The use and allocation of the native water is
governed by the agreements described in the next paragraph.

(ii) Agreement, dated February 6, 1928 (1928 Agreement"); Agreement, dated
May 15, 1956, as amended November 12,1973 (19b6 Agreement'); Agreement,
dated as of December 21, 1970 ("1970 Agreement"); Agreement Between lrvine
Ranch Water District and The lrvine Company Relative to lrvine Lake and the
Acquisition of water Rights ln and To Santiago Creek, As wellAs Additional
storage capacity in lrvine Lake, dated as of May 31, 1974 (1924 Agreement").
The 1928 Agreement was entered into among swD, clD and rlc, providing for
the use and allocation of native water in lrvine Lake. Through the 1g7O
Agreement and the 1974 Agreement, IRWD acquired the interests of clD and
TlC, leaving IRWD and SWD as the two co-owners. TIC retains ceftain reserved
rights. The 1928 Agreement divides the stored native water by a formula which
allocates to IRWD one-half of the first 1,000 AF, plus increments that generally

B-42
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas



yield three-fourths of the amount over 1,000 AF.e The agreements also provide
for evaporation and spill losses and carryover water remaining in the Lake at the
annual allocation dates. Given the dependence of native water on rainfall, for
purposes of this assessment only a small portion of IRWD's share of the 28,000
AFY of native water rights (4,000 AFY in normal years and 1,000 AFY in single
and multiple-dry years) is shown in currently available supplies, based on
averaging of historical data. However, IRWD's ability to supplement lrvine Lake
storage with its imported untreated water supplies, described herein, offsets the
uncertainty associated with the native water supply.

oNONPOTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER

lruine Subbasin / lruine Desalter (currently available)

(í) IRWD's entitlement to produce nonpotable water from the lrvine Subbasin is
included within the lrvine Subbasin Agreement. See discussion of the lrvine
Subbasin Agreement under Potable Supply - Groundwater; paragraph (iv),
above.

(ir) See discussion of the lrvine Desalter project under Potable Supply -
Groundwater, paragraph (v), above. The lrvine Desalter project will produce
nonpotable as well as potable water.

oIMPORTED SUPPLY - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

As described above, the imported supply from MWD is contractually subject to
availability. To assist local water providers in assessing the adequacy of local
water supplies that are reliant in whole or in part on MWD's imported supply;
MWD has provided information concerning the availability of the supplies to its
entire service area. ln its most recently adopted RUWMP, MWD has extended
its planning timeframe out through 2035 to ensure that MWD's 2010 RUWMP
may be used as a source document for meeting requirements for sufficient
supplies. ln addition, the RUWMP includes "Justifications for Supply
Projections" (Appendix A-3) that details the planning, legal, financial, and
regulatory basis for including each source of supply in the plan. The RUWMP
summarizes MWD's planning initiatives over the past ten years, which includes
the lntegrated Resources Plan (lRP), the IRP Update, the Water Surplus and
Drought Management Plan, Strategic Plan and Rate Structure. The reliability
analysis in MWD's IRP Update (October 2010) showed that MWD can maintain
reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in past dry periods
throughout the period 2015 through 2035. The RUWMP includes tables that
show the region can provide reliable supplies under both the single driest year
(1977) and multiple dry years (1990-92) through 2035. MWD has also identified
buffer supplies, including additional State Water Project groundwater storage and
transfers that could serve to supply the additional water needed.

e The 1956 Agreement provides for facilities to deliver MWD imported water into the Lake, and grants storage
capacity for the imported water. By succession, IRWD owns 9,000 AFY of this 12,000 AFY imported water storage
capacity. This storage capacity does not affect availability of the imported supply, which can be either stored or
delivered for direct use by customers.

B-43
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas



It is anticipated that MWD will revise its regional supply availability analysis
periodically to supplement its RUWMP in years when the RUWMP is not being
updated.

IRWD is permitted by the statute to rely upon the water supply information
provided by the wholesaler concerning a wholesale water supply source, for use
in preparing its UWMPs. ln turn, the statute provides for the use of UWMP
information to support water supply assessments and verifications. ln
accordance with these provisions, IRWD is entitled to rely upon the conclusions
of the MWD RUWMP. As referenced above under Summary of Results of
Demand-Supply Comparisons - Recent Actions on Delta Pumping, MWD has
provided additional information on its imported water supply.

MWD's reserve supplies, together with the fact that IRWD relies on MWD
supplies as supplemental supplies that need not be used to the extent IRWD
operates currently available and under-development local supplies, build a
margin of safety into IRWD's supply availability.

(2) Adopted capital outlay program to finance delivery of the water supplies.

All necessary delivery facilities currently exist for the use of the currently
available and under-developmenf supplies assessed herein, with the exception of
future groundwater wells, MWRP expansion and IRWD sub-regional and
developer-dedicated conveyance facilities necessary to complete the local
distribution systems for the Project, IRWD's turnout at each MWD connection
and IRWD's regional delivery facilities are sufficiently sized to deliver all of the
supply to the sub-regional and local distribution systems.

With respect to future groundwater wells (PR Nos. 10285, 15423,15427,15428,
15051 and 15052) and the MWRP Phase 2 expansion (PR, Nos. 20214 and
30214),IRWD adopted its fiscal year 2O1Ol11 capital budget on June 14,2010
(Resolution No. 2010-16), budgeting portions of the funds for such projects. (A
copy is available from IRWD on request.) For these facilities, as well as unbuilt
IRWD sub-regional conveyance facilities, the sources of funding are previously
authorized general obligation bonds, revenue-supported certificates of
participation and/or capitalfunds held by IRWD lmprovement Districts. IRWD
has maintained a successful program for the issuance of general obligation
bonds and certificates of participation on favorable borrowing terms, and IRWD
has received AAA public bond ratings. IRWD has approximately $673 million
(water) and $867 million (wastewater) of unissued, voter-approved bond
authorization. Certificates of participation do not require voter approval.
Proceeds of bonds and available capitalfunds are expected to be sufficient to
fund all IRWD facilities for delivery of the supplies under development. Tract-
level conveyance facilities are required to be donated to IRWD by the Applicant
or its successo(s) at time of development.

See also MWD's RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with
respect to capital outlay programs related to MWD's supplies.

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Are

B:44



(3) Federal, state and local permits for construction of delivery infrastructure.

Most IRWD delivery facilities are constructed in public right-of-way or future right-
of-way. State statute confers on IRWD the right to construct works along, under
or across any stream of water, watercourse, street, avenue, highway, railway,
canal, ditch or flume (Water Code Section 35603). Although this right cannot be
denied, local agencies may require encroachment permits when work is to be
performed within a street. lf easements are necessary for delivery infrastructure,
IRWD requires the developer to provide them. The crossing of watercourses or
areas with protected species requires federal and/or state permits as applicable.

See also MWD's RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with
respect to permits related to MWD's supplies.

(4) Regulatory approvals for conveyance or delivery of the supplies.

See response to preceding item (3). ln addition, reclamation plant expansion will
require approval of amendments to IRWD's permits issued by the Regional
Water Quality Control Board.

See also MWD's RUWMP, Appendix 4.3 Justifications for Supply Projections with
respect to regulatory approvals related to MWD's supplies.

3. Other users and contractholders (identified supply not previously used).

For each of the water supply sources identified by IRWD, if no water has been received
from that source(s), IRWD is required to identify other public water systems or water
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water supply
entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, that source(s):

Water has been received from all listed sources. A small quantity of Subbasin
water is used by Woodbridge Village Association for the purpose of supplying its
North and South Lakes. There are no other public water systems or water
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water
supply entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, the lrvine
Subbasin.

B-45
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Arba> ovro r 1or r r ¡



4. lnformation concerning groundwater included in the supply identified for
the Project:

(a) Relevant information in the Urban Water Manaqement Plan (UWMp):

See lrvine Ranch Water District 2005 UWMP, section lll-3.

(b) Description of the oroundwater basin(s) from which the Proiect will be supplied:

The Orange County Groundwater Basin ("Basin") is described at pages 3-1
through 3-14 of the OCWD Master Plan Report, dated April, 1999 ("MPR") and in
the more recent Groundwater Management Plan ("GMP") at pages 2-1 through
6-3310. The rights of the producers w¡tn¡n the Basin vis a vis oné another haùe
not been adjudicated. The Basin is managed by the Orange County Water
District (OCWD) for the benefit of municipal, agricultural and private groundwater
producers. OCWD is responsible for the protection of water rights to the Santa
Ana River in Orange County as well as the management and replenishment of
the Basin. Current production from the Basin is approximately 366,000 AFY.

The Department of Water Resources has not identified the Basin as overdrafted
in its most current bulletin that characterizes the condition of the Basin, Bulletin
118 (2003). The efforts being undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long{erm
overdraft in the Basin are described in the OCWD MPR, including in particular,
Chapters 4,5,6,14 and 15 of the MPR. ln addition to Orange County Water
District (OCWD) reports listed in the Assessment Reference List, OCWD has
also prepared a Long Term Facilities Plan ('LTFP") which provides updated
information and was received by the ocwD Board in July 2009. The LTFp
Chapter 3 describes the efforts being undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long-
term overdraft in the Basin.

Although the water supply assessment statute (Water Code Section 10910(f))
refers to elimination of "long-term overdraft," overdraft includes conditions which
may be managed for optimum basin storage, rather than eliminated. OCWD's
Act defines annual groundwater overdraft to be the quantity by which production
exceeds the natural replenishment of the Basin. Accumulated overdraft is
defined in the OCWD Act to be the quantity of water needed in the groundwater
basin forebay to prevent landward movement of seawater into the fresh
groundwater body. However, seawater intrusion controlfacilities have been
constructed by OCWD since the Act was written, and have been effective in
preventing landward movement of seawater. These facilities allow greater
utilization of the storage capacity of the Basin.

OCWD has invested over $250 million in seawater intrusion control (injection
barriers), recharge facilities, laboratories, and Basin monitoring to effectively
manage the Basin. Consequently, although the Basin is defined to be in an
"overdraft" condition, it is actually managed to allow utilization of up to 5O0,OOO
acre-feet of storage capacity of the basin during dry periods, acting as an
underground reservoir and buffer against drought. OCWD has an optimal basin

to 
OCWD has also prepared a Long Term Facilities Plan which provides updated information which was received and

filed by its Board in July 2009.

B-46
Water Supply Assessment - Her¡tage Fields Planning Arer



management target of 100,000 acre-feet of accumulated overdraft provides
sufficient storage space to accommodate increased supplies from one wet year
while also provide enough water in storage to offset decreased supplies during a
two- to three year drought. lf the Basin is too full, artesian conditions can occur
along the coastal area, causing rising water and water logging, an adverse
condition. Since the formation of OCWD in 1933, OCWD has made substantial
investment in facilities, Basin management and water rights protection, resulting
in the elimination and prevention of adverse long-term "mining" overdraft
conditions. OCWD continues to develop new replenishment supplies, recharge
capacity and basin protection measures to meet projected production from the
basin during normal rainfall and drought periods. (Source: 2008-2009
Engineer's Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin
Utilization in the Orange County Water District; OCWD MPR, supra.)

OCWD's efforts include ongoing replenishment programs and planned capital
improvements. lt should be noted under OCWD's management of overdraft to
maximize its use for annual production and recharge operations, overdraft varies
over time as the Basin is managed to keep it in balance over the long term. The
Basin is not operated on an annual safe-yield basis. (OCWD MPR, section 3.2
and LTFP, section 6)

(c) Description and analvsis of the amount and location of groundwater pumped by
IRWD from the Basin for the past five )rears:

The following table shows the amounts pumped, by groundwater source:

(ln AFY)

(d) Description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater projected to be
pumped by IRWD from the Basin:

1l The water produced from IRWD's Los Alisos wells is not included in this assessment. IRWD is presently
evaluating the future use of these wells.

Year (ending 6/30)
DRWF/DATS/

OPA
lrvine Subbasin (IRWD) Irvine Subbasin (TlC) LAWD1l

2010 37,151 8,695 0 3

2009 38,140 7,614 0 0

2008 36,741 4,539 0 16

2007 37,864 5,407 0 6

2006 37,046 2,825 0 268

2005 36,316 2,285 628 357

2004 30,265 1,938 3,079 101

2003 24,040 2,132 4,234 598
2002 25,855 2,533 5,075 744

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Arr
B-47



IRWD has a developed groundwater supply of 35,200 AFY from its Dyer Road
Wellfield (including the Deep Aquifer Treatment System), in the main portion of
the Basin.

Although TIC's historical production from the Subbasin declined as its use of the
Subbasin for agricultural water diminished, OCWD's and other historical
production records for the Subbasin show that production has been as high as
13,000 AFY. Plans are also underway to expand IRWD's main Orange County
Groundwater Basin supply (characterized as under-development supplies
herein). (See Section 2 (a) (1) herein). IRWD anticipates the development of
additional production facilities within both the main Basin and the lrvine
Subbasin. However, such additionalfacilities have not been included or relied
upon in this assessment. Additional groundwater development will provide an
additional margin of safety as well as reduce future water supply costs to IRWD.

The following table summarizes future IRWD groundwater production from currently available
and under-development supplies.

(ln AFY)

Year (ending 6/30) DRWF'2 Future GW13 IDP tpot"¡r") IDP (ronpot"¡r")

2015 37,900 15,600 5,640 3,898

2020 37,900 22,100 5,640 3,898

2025 37,900 32,600 5,640 3,898

2031 37,900 32,600 5,640 3,898

(e) lf not included in the UWMP, analysis of the sufficiency of groundwater projected to
be pumped by IRWD from the Basin to meet to meet the projected water demand of the
Project:

See responses to 4(b) and 4(d).

The OCWD MPR and LTFP examined future Basin conditions and capabilities,
water supply and demand, and identified projects to meet increased
replenishment needs of the basin. With the implementation of OCWD's preferred
projects, the Basin yield in the year 2025 would be up to 500,000 AF. The
amount that can be produced will be a function of which projects will be
implemented by OCWD and how much increased recharge capacity is created
by those projects, total demands by all producers, and the resulting Basin
Production Percentage ("BPP") that OCWD sets based on these factors.la

12 See Potable Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (iii), above. DRWF non-colored production above 28,000
AFY and colored water production above 8,000 AFY are subject to contractually-imposed assessments. ln addition,
seasonal production amounts apply. This also includes 1,000 AFY for the OPA well.

13 Under development.

14 OCWD has adopted a basin production percentage ol 62o/o for 2010-1 1. ln prior years OCWD has

B-48
Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning I



Sufficient replenishment supplies are projected by the OCWD MPR to be
available to OCWD to meet the increasing demand on the Basin. These supplies
include capture of increasing Santa Ana River flows, purchases of replenishment
water from MWD, and development of new local supplies. OCWD is moving
forward with a number of replenishment supply projects, including the
Groundwater Replenishment System project ("GWRS"). The OCWD MPR
indicates that the GWRS will produce over 100,000 afy of new replenishment
supply from recycled water.

Production of groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages
on a short-term basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or
emergencies. Additional groundwater production is anticipated by OCWD in the
Basin in dry years, as producers reduce their use of imported supplies, and the
Basin is "mined" in anticipation of the eventual availability of replenishment water.
(OCWD MPR, section 14.6.)

See also, Figures 1-8. IRWD assesses sufficiency of supplies on an aggregated
basis, as neither groundwater nor other supply sources are allocated to particular
projects or customers. Under the lrvine Subbasin Agreement, IRWD is
contractually obligated to attribute the Subbasin supply only to TIC development
projects for assessment purposes; however, the agreement does not allocate or
assign rights in the Subbasin supply to any project.

5. X This Water Supply Assessment is being completed for a project
included in a prior water supply assessment. Date of prior assessment: January
27,2003. Check all of the following that apply:

I Changes in the Project have substantially increased water demand.

! Changes in circumstances or conditions have substantially affected IRWD's
ability to provide a sufficient water supply for the Project.

! Significant new information has become available which was not known and
could not have been known at the date of the prior Water Supply Assessment.

6. References

Water Resources Master PIan,lrvine Ranch Water District, March, 2002 (supplemented
January, 2004)

2005 Urban Water Management Plan,lrvine Ranch Water District, November, 2005

Integrated Water Resources Plan Updafe, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
July, 2004

maintained a basin production percentage that is higher than the current percentage, and IRWD anticipates that such
reductions may occur from time to time as a temporary measure employed by OCWD to encourage lower pumping
levels as OCWD implements other measures to reduce the current accumulated overdraft in the Basin. Any such
reductions are not expected to affect any of IRWD's currently available groundwater supplies listed in this
assessment, which are subject to a contractually-set equivalent basin production percentage as described, or are
exempt from the basin production percentage-

B-49
Waler Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar



Proposed Framework for Metropolitan Water Districfs Delta Action Plan, Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California, May 8,2007

Board Information Repoft, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October 9,2007

2007 IRP lmplementation Report, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October,
2007

Master Plan Report, Orange County Water District, April, 1999

Groundwater Management Plan, Orange County Water District, March, 2004

Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan, Orange County Water District, January 2006

2008-2009 Engineels Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization in
the Orange County Water District, Orange County Water District

Progress on lncorporating Climate Change into Management of California's Water Resources,
California Department of Water Resources, July 2006

Section 15 of the Rules and Regulations - Water Conseruation and Water Supply Shortage
Program,lrvine Ranch Water District, February 2009

Water Shortage Contingency Plan,lwine Ranch Water District, February 2009

2010 Integrated Resources PIan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
October 2010

Regional Urban Water Management Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
November 2010

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Ar

B-50



Exhibit A

Depiction of Project Area

B-51

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 1)



Vicinity Map

''1

{

ì

l-¿'
t

. ..¡"
',..1

il

[-É-*--¡

B-52



Exhibit B

Uses lncluded in Project

B-53

Water Supply Assessment - Heritage Fields Planning Areas 30/51 (5/1 1)



February 18,2011

lrvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
P.O. Box 57000
lrvine, CA 92619-7000

Re: Request for Water Supply Availability Assessment (Water Code 910910 ef seq.)

The City of lrvine hereby requests an assessment of water supply availability for the below-described
project. The City has determined that the project is a "project" as defined in Water Code $10912, and has
determined that a supplemental environmental impact report is required for the project.

Proposed Project lnformation

Project Title: Heritaqe Fields Planning Areas 30 & 51, inclusion of Densitv Bonus residential units Eanted
pursuant to state law, Section 2-3, and Resolution 08-2926

Locaiion of project: Former MCAS El Toro Base, Planning Areas 30 and 51. The boundaries of Planninq Area 5'1
qenerally include the Eastern Transoortation Corridor to the west, the Foothill Transportation Corridor to the east,
the Southern California Regional RailAuthoritv (SCRRA) rail lines to the south, and lrvine Boulevard and the
storm channel near Alton Parkway to the north. Planninq Area 51 abuts Plannino Areas 30 and 32 to the south,
lrvine Soectrum 2 - Planning Area 35 to the east, and Planninq Areas_9 and 40 to the west, and Plannino Area 6
to the north, The boundaries of Planninq Area 30 qenerallv include lnterstate 5 (Santa Ana Freeway) to the
south, the SCRRA rail lines to the north, and the lrvine Spectrum to the east and west (lrvine Spectrum 2-
Planninq Area 35 and lrvine Spectrum 3 - Planning Area 32). See attached Vicinitv Map

n Previous Water Supply Assessment including this project was prepared on', 1127103 . This
application requests a new Water Supply Assessment, due to the following (check all that apply):

x Changes in the project have substantially increased water demand
tr Changes in circumstances or conditions have substantially affected IRWD's ability to provide a sufficient

water supply for the project
¡ Significant new information has become available which was not known and could not have been known

at the date of the prior Water Supply Assessment
(Enclose maps and exhibits of the project)

Type of Development:
x Resrdenf¡al: No. of dwelling units: .3,625 (in prior assessment). 1,269 new (total 4,894)

nShoppingcenterorbusiness:No.ofemployees-Sq.ft.offloorspace
! Gommercialoffibe: No. of employees
tl Hatel or motel: No. of rooms

Sq. ft. of floor space

tl lndustrial, manufacturing, processing or industrial park: No. of employees
No. of acres Sq. ft. of floor space

n Mixed use (check and complete all above that apply)
x Other. Non-Residential existino entitlement per original Water Supply Assessment with addition of (1) 1.000
student school.

Total acreage of project per oriqinal Water Supplv Assessment

Acreage devoted to landscape: (per original Water Supply Assessment)
Greenbelt_ golf course parks
Agriculture other landscaped areas

Number of schools addition of (1) 1,000 student school Number of public facilities

B-54



Other factors or uses that would affect the quantity of water needed, such as peak flow requirements or potential
uses to be added to the project to reduce or mitigate environmental impacts:

Landscaped areas will be irrigated via reclaimed water

What is the current land use of the area subject to a land use change under the project?
Per original Water Supplv Asqessment

ls the project included in the existing General Plan? Yes lf no, describe the existing General Plan
Designation

The City acknowledges that IRWD's assessment will be based on the information hereby provided to IRWD
concerning the project. lf it is necessary for corrected or additional information to be submitted to enable IRWD to
complete the assessment, the request will be considered incomplete until IRWD's receipt of the corrected or
additional information. lf the project, circumstances or conditions change or new information becomes available
after the issuance of a Water Supply Assessment, the Water Supply Assessment may no longer be valid. The
City will request a new Water Supply Assessment if it determines that one is required.

The City acknowledges that the Water Supply Assessment shall not constitute a "will-serve" or in any way entitle
the project applicant to serv¡ce or to any right, priority or allocation in any supply, capacity or facility, and that the
issuance of the Water Supply Assessment shall not affect IRWD's obligation to provide service to its existing
customers or any potential future customers including the project applicant. ln order to receive service, the
project applicant shall be required to file a completed Application(s) for Service and Agreement with the lrvine
Ranch Water District on IRWD's forms, together with all fees and charges, plans and specifications, bonds and
conveyance of necessary easements, and meet all other requirement as specified therei¡.

CITY ¿lW*l oF .RANGE

By:

REQUEST RECEIVED:

Date: )*"1' )( " oïg t ¡

REQUEST COMPLETE:

¡.¡". LftVt ¿lrl¡l- 4 , Jl' I I

By:

By:

ne Ranch Water District

u)fi4'u*
lrvine Ranch Water District

B-55



 
 
20. RECONSIDERATION OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MUNICIPAL  
 WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY (MWDOC) AND ITS  
 MEMBER AGENCIES ON BUDGET, ACTIVITIES, CHARGES AND  
 OTHER SERVICES AS APPROVED BY THE IRWD BOARD ON  
 JANUARY 24, 2011 
 
 Recommendation: Background: in light of the recent actions at MWDOC,  
 Director Swan has requested the Board discuss reconsideration of the subject  
 agreement. 


	5/23/11 Board Meeting Agenda 
	#4:  FY 2011/12 Draft Capital Budget
	#5:  Minutes of Regular Board Meeting
	#6:  Ratify/Approvd BOD Mtg/Events
	#7:  April 2011 Financial Reports
	#8:  Strategic Measures Dashboards
	#9:  Upcoming Projects Status Report
	#10:  2011 State Legislative Update
	#11:  Project Greenfill Cooperative Agreement
	#12: Ratification of proposed By-laws for OCSD Selection Committee
	#13:  MWRP Biosolids & Energy Rec. Fac. Var No. 6
	#14:  Variance Request Strand Ranch Rec. Fac. Design
	#15:  EPA Watersense Program: Water Softeners
	#16:  Proposal to provide Cross-Connection & Backflow PRev. Svcs City of SJ Capistrano
	#17:  OPA Transmission Pipeline project CCO No. 9
	#18:  Wells 21 & 22 Desalter Project Pipeline & Wellhead Fac. EA, Var & Con Sel.
	#19:  Water Supply Assessmt Heritage Fields PA 30 & 51
	#20:  Reconsideration of the Agreement between MWDOC & Member Agencies 



